
 
 
To: MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Councillors Blackwell (Chair), C.White (Vice-Chair), 
Connolly, Duck, Farr, Gray, Lockwood, Mansfield, Moore, 
Morrow, Prew, Ridge and Shiner 
 
Substitute Councillors: Allen, Bloore, Botten and Mills 
 

for any enquiries, please contact: 
customerservices@tandridge.gov.uk 

01883 722000 

C.C. All other Members of the Council 24 August 2021 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
THURSDAY, 2ND SEPTEMBER, 2021 AT 7.30 PM 
 
The agenda for this meeting of the Committee to be held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, 
Station Road East, Oxted is set out below.  If a member of the Committee is unable to attend the 
meeting, please notify officers accordingly. 
 
Should members require clarification about any item of business, they are urged to contact officers 
before the meeting. In this respect, reports contain authors’ names and contact details. 
 
 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
David Ford 
Chief Executive 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Minutes of the meeting held on the 29th July 2021  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 

To confirm as a correct record  
 

2. Apologies for absence (if any)   
 
3. Declarations of interest   
 

All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the meeting or as soon as 
possible thereafter: 
 

(i) any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) and / or 
 

(ii) other interests arising under the Code of Conduct 
 
in respect of any item(s) of business being considered at the meeting. Anyone with a DPI 
must, unless a dispensation has been granted, withdraw from the meeting during 
consideration of the relevant item of business.  If in doubt, advice should be sought from the 
Monitoring Officer or her staff prior to the meeting.  
 

4. To deal with any questions submitted under Standing Order 30   
 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:customerservices@tandridge.gov.uk


 

5. Applications for consideration by committee  (Pages 7 - 16) 
 

5.1 2020/1138 - Woodland Court,1 Harestone Drive, Caterham CR3 6HX   
(Pages 17 - 36) 

 
5.2 2021/82 - Woodrising, The Ridge, Woldingham CR3 7AG  (Pages 37 - 62) 
 
 

6. Recent appeal decisions received   
 

To receive a verbal update from officers relating to appeal decisions by the Planning 
Inspectorate resulting from previous committee decisions. 
 
 

7. Any other business which the Chairman is of the opinion should be considered at 
the meeting as a matter of urgency   

 
 



 

 

TANDRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes and report to Council of the meeting of the Committee held in the Council Chamber, 
Council Offices, Station Road East, Oxted on the 29th July 2021. 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Blackwell (Chair), C.White (Vice-Chair), Connolly, Duck, Farr, 

Gray, Lockwood, Moore, Ridge, Shiner, Bloore (substitute in place of Prew) 
and Botten (substitute in place of Mansfield) 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillors Allen, Crane, Dennis, Groves, Mills, O'Driscoll, and 

Swann 

 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillors Mansfield, Morrow and Prew 

 

 
92. MINUTES FROM THE MEETING HELD ON THE 1ST JULY 2021 

 
The minutes of the meeting were confirmed and signed by the Chair. 
 
 
 

COUNCIL DECISION (subject to ratification by Council) 

 
93. 2021/636 - GARAGE COURT AT AUCKLAND ROAD, CATERHAM  

 
The Committee considered an application for the demolition of existing garages and 
the erection of three residential dwellings of a 2-storey nature. 
 
The Officer’s recommendation was for a resolution to permit subject to Full Council. 
 
Nicola Cresswell spoke in favour of the application on behalf of the applicant. 
 
It was agreed during the debate that the following conditions be added to the officer 
recommendation: 
 

SuDs 
 
The development hereby permitted shall not commence until details of the design of a 
surface water drainage scheme have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The design must satisfy the SuDS Hierarchy and be compliant with the 
national Non-Statutory Technical Standards for SuDS, NPPF and Ministerial Statement on 
SuDS. The required drainage details shall include: 
 
a)  The results of infiltration testing completed in accordance with BRE Digest:365 and 

confirmation of groundwater levels. 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 
 

b)  A plan showing exceedance flows (i.e. during rainfall greater than design events or 
 during blockage) and how property on and off site will be protected from increased flood 
 risk. 
 
c)  Details of drainage management responsibilities and maintenance regimes 
 for the drainage system. 
 
Environment Agency recommended Conditions 
 
If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the 
site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted, and obtained written 
approval from the Local Planning Authority for, a remediation strategy detailing how this 
unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with. The remediation strategy shall be 
implemented as approved, verified and reported to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason: To prevent any contamination or unacceptable risk to Controlled Waters in 
accordance with Policy CSP15 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2004 and Policies 
DP21 and DP22 of the Tandridge District Local Plan – Part 2: Detailed Policies 2014 and the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2021. 
 
No drainage systems for the infiltration of surface water drainage into the ground are 
permitted other than with the express written consent of the Local Planning Authority, which 
may be given for those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated that there is no 
resultant unacceptable risk to Controlled Waters. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approval details. 
 
Reason: To protect the underlying groundwater from the risk of pollution in accordance with 
Policy CSP15 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2004 and Policies DP21 and DP22 of 
the Tandridge District Local Plan – Part 2: Detailed Policies 2014 and the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2021. 
 
Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall not be permitted 
other than with the express written consent of the Local Planning Authority, which may be 
given for those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated that there is no resultant 
unacceptable risk to groundwater. The development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details. 
 
Reason: To prevent unacceptable risks to underlying groundwaters in accordance with 
Policy CSP15 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2004 and Policies DP21 and DP22 of 
the Tandridge District Local Plan – Part 2: Detailed Policies 2014 and the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2021. 
 
Informative 
 
Where soil contamination is found to be present, a risk assessment must carried out in 
accordance with our guidance 'Piling into Contaminated Sites'. We will not permit piling 
activities on parts of a site where an unacceptable risk is posed to Controlled Waters. 

 
R E C O M M E N D E D – that planning permission be granted, subject to conditions 
(and subject to ratification by Full Council) 

 
 
 

Page 4



 

 
 

 

94. 2021/637 - GARAGE COURT AT WINDMILL CLOSE, CATERHAM 

 
The Committee considered an application for the demolition of existing garages and the 
erection of three residential dwellings of a single storey and 2-storey nature. 
 
The Officer’s recommendation was for a resolution to permit subject to Full Council. 
 
Mr Adam Llambias, an objector, spoke against the application. 
 
Nicola Cresswell spoke in favour of the application on behalf of the applicant. 
 
It was agreed during the debate that the following conditions be added to the officer 
recommendation: 
 

Environment Agency recommended Conditions 
 
If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the 
site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted, and obtained written 
approval from the Local Planning Authority for, a remediation strategy detailing how this 
unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with. The remediation strategy shall be 
implemented as approved, verified and reported to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason: To prevent any contamination or unacceptable risk to Controlled Waters in 
accordance with Policy CSP15 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2004 and Policies 
DP21 and DP22 of the Tandridge District Local Plan – Part 2: Detailed Policies 2014 and the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2021. 
 
No drainage systems for the infiltration of surface water drainage into the ground are 
permitted other than with the express written consent of the Local Planning Authority, which 
may be given for those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated that there is no 
resultant unacceptable risk to Controlled Waters. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approval details. 
 
Reason: To protect the underlying groundwater from the risk of pollution in accordance with 
Policy CSP15 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2004 and Policies DP21 and DP22 of 
the Tandridge District Local Plan – Part 2: Detailed Policies 2014 and the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2021. 
 
Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall not be permitted 
other than with the express written consent of the Local Planning Authority, which may be 
given for those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated that there is no resultant 
unacceptable risk to groundwater. The development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details. 
 
Reason: To prevent unacceptable risks to underlying groundwaters in accordance with 
Policy CSP15 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2004 and Policies DP21 and DP22 of 
the Tandridge District Local Plan – Part 2: Detailed Policies 2014 and the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2021. 
 
 
 

Page 5



 

 
 

Informative 
 
Where soil contamination is found to be present, a risk assessment must carried out in 
accordance with our guidance 'Piling into Contaminated Sites'. We will not permit piling 
activities on parts of a site where an unacceptable risk is posed to Controlled Waters. 

 
R E C O M M E N D E D – that planning permission be granted, subject to conditions 
(and subject to ratification by Full Council) 

 
 
 

 
Rising 9.05pm 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 

 

 

 

REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

ON 2ND SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
AGENDA ITEM 5 
 

APPLICATIONS FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE COMMITTEE 
 
To consider the applications detailed in items 5.1 and 5.2 
 
Notes: 
 
(i) All letters received commenting on applications adversely or otherwise will be available in the 

Council Chamber for inspection by Members prior to the meeting.  Summaries of the public 
responses to applications are included in the reports although Members should note that 
non-planning comments are not included. 

 
(ii) Arrangements for public participation in respect of the applications will be dealt with 

immediately prior to the commencement of the meeting. 
 

 
Contacts:  
 
Louise Wesson, Head of Planning – 01883 732738 
Email: lwesson@tandridge.gov.uk  
 
Georgina Betts, Principal Planning Officer – 01883 732906 
Email: gbetts@tandridge.gov.uk  
 
James Amos, Principal Planning Officer 
Email: jamos@tandridge.gov.uk 
 
Lidia Harrison, Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer – 01883 732740 
Email: lharrison@tandridge.gov.uk 
  
Background papers: Surrey Waste Plan 2008; Surrey Minerals Plan Core Strategy 2011; The 

Tandridge Core Strategy Development Plan Document 2008; The Tandridge 
Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014; Woldingham Neighbourhood 
Plan 2016; The Harestone Valley and Woldingham Design Guidance 
Supplementary Planning Documents 2011; Village Design Statement for 
Lingfield – Supplementary Planning Guidance; Woldingham Village Design 
Statement – Supplementary Planning Guidance; Conservation Area 
Appraisal of the Bletchingley Conservation Area Supplementary Planning 
Guidance; Limpsfield Neighbourhood Plan 2019 

 
Government Advice: National Planning Policy Framework  

 Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

mailto:lwesson@tandridge.gov.uk
mailto:gbetts@tandridge.gov.uk
mailto:jamos@tandridge.gov.uk
mailto:lharrison@tandridge.gov.uk


 
 

 

 

  

PLANNING COMMITTEE – 2ND SEPTEMBER 2021 – RECOMMENDATIONS 

ITEM 
NO. 

APPLICATION 
NO. 

SITE ADDRESS APPLICATION DETAILS RECOMMENDATION 

 

5.1 2020/1138 Woodland Court, 
1 Harestone Drive, 
Caterham 
CR3 6HX 

Demolition of existing 3 x two storey 
terraced houses. Erection of a two 
storey 8-bedroom Care Home with 
associated parking. 

Change of Use of site from C3 to C2. 

 

PERMIT subject to 
conditions 

5.2 

 

 

 

2021/82 Woodrising,  
The Ridge, 
Woldingham 
CR3 7AG 

Demolition of the existing building 
and tennis court; erection of two 
storey building with accommodation 
in the roof space comprising of 2x 
one bedroom, 8x two bedroom and 
2x three-bedroom flats. Provision of 
associated parking and landscaping. 

PERMIT subject to 
conditions 

Page 8



 
 

 

SUMMARY OF RELEVANT POLICIES & NATIONAL ADVICE FOR  
PLANNING APPLICATIONS  

 
Core Strategy 
 
Policy CSP1 sets several strategic aims in terms of the location of development.  It 
seeks to promote sustainable patterns of travel, make the best use of land within the 
existing built-up areas. 
 
Policy CSP2 sets out the Council’s approach to housing supply. 
 
Policy CSP3 seeks to manage the delivery of housing when the Council exceeds its 
rolling 5-year supply by more than 20%.  When such an oversupply exists, the Council 
will refuse development of unidentified residential garden land sites of 5 units and 
above or site larger than 0.2ha where the number of dwellings is unknown.  Account 
must be taken of smaller sites forming parts of larger sites and infrastructure provision 
as well as significant social or community benefits. 
 
Policy CSP4 is an interim holding policy pending the adoption of a substitute policy in 
an Affordable Housing DPD.  It sets a threshold within built up areas of 15 units or 
more or sites in excess of 0.5ha and within rural areas of 10 units or more.  The policy 
requires that up to 34% of units would be affordable in these cases with the actual 
provision negotiated on a site by site basis.  There is a requirement that up to 75% of 
the affordable housing will be provided in the form of social rented or intermediate or 
a mix of both. 
 
Policy CSP5 refers to rural exception sites and states that exceptionally, land adjoining 
or closely related to the defined rural settlements which would otherwise be considered 
inappropriate for development may be developer in order to provide affordable housing 
subject to certain criteria.   
 
Policy CSP7 requires sites providing 5 units or more to contain and appropriate mix of 
dwelling sizes in accordance with identified needs. 
 
Policy CSP8 sets out the Council’s approach to the provision of Extra Care Housing, 
including its targets for such provision.  
 
Policy CSP9 sets out the criteria for assessing suitable Gypsy and Traveller sites to 
meet unexpected and proven need. 
 
Policy CSP11 sets out the Council’s approach to infrastructure and service provision. 
 
Policy CSP12 seeks to manage travel demand by requiring preference to walking, 
cycling and public transport; infrastructure improvements where required and use of 
adopted highway design standards and parking standards. 
 
Policy CSP13 seeks to retain existing cultural, community, recreational, sport and open 
space facilities and encourage new or improved facilities. 
 
Policy CSP14 seeks to encourage all new build or residential conversions meet Code 
level 3 as set out in the Code for Sustainable Homes and that commercial development 
with a floor area over 500sq m will be required to meet BREEAM “Very Good” standard.  
On site renewables are also required. 
 

Page 9



 
 

 

Policy CSP15 seeks to ensure that the design and layout of development is safe and 
secure, that new buildings are adaptable for the disabled and elderly, that information 
technology can be included, that all development is accessible to all groups and that 
grey water recycling and/or segregated surface and foul water disposal is used. 
 
Policy CSP16 sets out the Council’s position on aviation development in the District 
with specific reference to its position on development at Redhill Aerodrome.   
 
Policy CSP17 requires that biodiversity is taken into account. 
 
Policy CSP18 seeks to ensure that developments have a high standard of design 
respecting local character, setting and context.  Amenities of existing occupiers must 
be respected.  Wooded hillsides will be respected and green space within built up 
areas protected.  Development on the edge of the Green Belt must not harm the Green 
Belt. 
 
Policy CSP19 sets a range of densities for new development. 
 
Policy CSP20 sets out the Council’s principles for the conservation and enhancement 
of the AONBs and AGLVs. 
 
Policy CSP21 states that the character and distinctiveness of the District’s landscapes 
and countryside will be protected, and new development will be required to conserve 
ad enhance landscape character. 
 
Policy CSP22 sets out how the Council will seek to develop a sustainable economy. 
 
Policy CSP23 set out specific aims for the town centres of Caterham Valley and Oxted. 
 
Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies – 2014  
 
Policy DP1 sets out the general presumption in favour of sustainable development. 
 
Policy DP2 sets out the policies for development in the town centres, including within 
the primary and secondary shopping frontages 
 
Policy DP3 sets out the policies for development in local centres, other centres and 
villages 
 
Policy DP4 sets out the circumstances under which proposals for the alternative use 
of commercial and industrial sites will be permitted. 
 
Policy DP5 sets out criteria for assessing whether proposals are acceptable in relation 
to highway safety and design. 
 
Policy DP6 sets out criteria for assessing proposals for telecommunications 
infrastructure.  
 
Policy DP7 is a general policy for all new development.  It outlines that development 
should be appropriate to the character of the area, provide sufficient parking, safeguard 
amenity and safeguard assets, resources and the environment, including trees.  
 
Policy DP8 sets out a number of criteria for assessing whether the redevelopment of 
residential garden land will be acceptable. 
 

Page 10



 
 

 

Policy DP9 sets out the circumstances in which the erection of gates, walls and other 
means of enclosure will be permitted. 
 
Policy DP10 confirms the general presumption against inappropriate development in 
the Green Belt and states that inappropriate development will only be permitted where 
very special circumstances exist which clearly outweigh the potential harm to the 
Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness and any other harm.  
 
Policy DP11 sets out the circumstances in which development in the Larger Rural 
Settlements will be permitted. 
 
Policy DP12 sets out the circumstances in which development in the Defined Villages 
in the Green Belt will be permitted.  
 
Policy DP13 sets out the exceptions to the Green Belt presumption against 
inappropriate development in the Green Belt and the circumstances in which new 
buildings and facilities, extensions and alterations, replacement of buildings, infill, 
partial or complete redevelopment and the re-use of buildings will be permitted.  
 
Policy DP14 sets out a number of criteria for assessing proposals for garages and 
other ancillary domestic buildings in the Green Belt. 
 
Policy DP15 sets out criteria for assessing proposals for agricultural workers’ dwellings 
in the Green Belt. 
 
Policy DP16 states that the removal of agricultural occupancy conditions will be 
permitted where the Council is satisfied that there is no longer a need for such 
accommodation in the locality. 
 
Policy DP17 sets out criteria for assessing proposals for equestrian facilities.  
 
Policy DP18 sets out the circumstances in which development involving the loss of 
premises or land used as a community facility will be permitted. 
 
Policy DP19 deals with biodiversity, geological conservation and green infrastructure. 
 
Policy DP20 sets out the general presumption in favour of development proposals 
which protect, preserve or enhance the interest and significance of heritage assets and 
the historic environment. 
 
Policy DP21 deals with sustainable water management, and sets out criteria for 
assessing development in relation to water quality, ecology and hydromorphology, and 
flood risk. 
 
Policy DP22 sets out criteria for assessing and mitigating against contamination, 
hazards and pollution including noise.  
 
Woldingham Neighbourhood Plan 2016  
 
Policy L1 is a general design policy for new development  
 
Policy L2 sets out criteria for assessing new development proposals in relation to the 
Woldingham Character Areas  
 
Policy L3 relates to landscape character 

Page 11



 
 

 

 
Policy L4 relates to proposals for new community facilities 
 
Policy L5 relates to development proposals for The Crescent and its regeneration 
 
Policy L6 seeks to support improvements to the accessibility of Woldingham Station 
 
Policy L7 relates to the development of broadband and mobile communications 
infrastructure 
 
Policy L8 seeks to safeguard a number of Local Green Spaces as designated by the 
Plan  
 
Policy C1 seeks to promote residents’ safety 
 
Policy C2 seeks to support proposals and projects which improve local transport 
services 
 
Policy C3 supports the improvement of pedestrian and cycle routes 
 
Policy C4 supports proposals which promote networking and residents’ involvement 
on local societies and organisations 
 
Limpsfield Neighbourhood Plan 2019 
 
Policy LN1 sets out a spatial strategy for the Parish. 
 
Policy LN2 requires that all new development provides an appropriate mix of housing 
types and size, including smaller units (3 bedrooms or fewer) for sites over a certain 
size. 
 
Policy LN3 seeks a high quality of design, reflecting the distinctive character of 
particular areas of the Parish. 
 
Policy LN4 relates to new development in the Limpsfield Conservation Area. 
 
Policy LN5 relates to landscape character. 
 
Policy LN6 identifies a number of Local Green Spaces, and seeks to protect their use. 
 
Policy LN8 seeks to promote biodiversity. 
 
Policy LN9 relates to business and employment, including in relation to Oxted town 
centre. 
 
Policy LN10 relates to the rural economy. 
 
Policy LN11 seeks to protect community services in Oxted town centre.  
 
Policy LN12 seeks to protect community services in Limpsfield Village and other parts 
of the Parish.  
 
Policy LN13 supports sustainable forms of transport.  
 
Policy LN14 supports the provision of super-fast broadband.  

Page 12



 
 

 

Caterham, Chaldon and Whyteleafe Neighbourhood Plan 2021 
 
Policy CCW1 – gives support to proposals identified for their Housing Site Availability 
during the period 2015-2026 
 
Policy CCW2 – supports proposals for sub-division of larger residential properties into 
one, two, three-bedroom dwellings 
 
Policy CCW3 – supports proposals for housing which optimise housing delivery in 
accordance with guidance contained in the Urban Capacity Study and outlines density 
range of 30-55 dwellings per hectare for land not covered in the Urban Capacity 
Report. 
 
Policy CCW4 – sets out that development is expected to preserve and enhance the 
character of the area in which it is located. 
 
Policy CCW5 – sets out that development proposals which integrate well with their 
surroundings, meet the needs of residents and minimise impact on the local 
environment will be supported where they demonstrate high quality of design and 
accord with the criteria of this policy. 
 
Policy CCW6 – support proposals which incorporate measures to deliver 
environmentally sustainable design to reduce energy consumption and mitigate effects 
of climate change in line with building design measures contained in the policy. 
 
Policy CCW7 – supports proposals which provide incubator/start-up business space 
and/or establishes enterprise/business park developments.  
 
Policy CCW8 – resists the loss of local and neighbourhood convenience shops unless 
justification is present on viability grounds. Proposals to improve the quality and 
appearance of sop fronts and signage will be supported which have regards to CCW6.  
 
Policy CCW9 – proposals for recreational and tourism development including a Visitor 
Centre will be supported where the criteria of this policy are met. Proposals for the 
improvement of signage for local facilities will be supported provided they integrate 
with their surroundings. 
 
Policy CCW10 – supports development proposals which do not have a significantly 
detrimental impact on locally significant views as listed/mapped in the Neighbourhood 
Plan (Figures 7.1, 7.2-7.5, with detailed descriptions in Appendix A). 
 
Policy CCW11 – sets out that there are 22 areas designated as Local Green Spaces 
on the policies map for the Neighbourhood Plan. Proposals which demonstrably 
accord with development appropriate in the Green Belt will be supported. 
 
Policy CCW12 – proposals for provision of allotments and/or community growing 
spaces will be supported where accessible and within/adjacent to defined settlement 
areas. The loss of such space will not be supported unless alternative and equivalent 
provision is provided. 
 
Policy CCW14 – encourages proposals for new/improved community facilities where 
criteria in the policy are met. The loss of such facilities will only be supported if 
alternative and equivalent facilities are provided. 
 

Page 13



 
 

 

Policy CCW15 – proposals for the expansion of existing public houses to develop 
appropriate community-based activities will be supported subject to compliance with 
other relevant policies and provide the design is in keeping with local 
character/distinctiveness. Proposals for the change of use of public houses will only 
be supported if the use is demonstrably unviable. 
 
Policy CCW16 – supports proposals for provision of both traditional consecrated and 
green/woodland burial sites provided the criteria of this policy are met.  
 
Policy CCW17 – supports proposals which facilitate or enhance the delivery of health 
services on a pre-set list of sites (contained within the policy), except for those within 
the Green Belt. Proposals for relocation/expansion of health services will be supported 
where they satisfy the criteria of this policy.  
 
Policy CCW18 – except on Green Belt land, proposals which facilitate and enhance 
existing schools and associated playing fields will be supported subject to compliance 
with the criteria in this policy (sub-paragraph A). Proposals for new schools will be 
supported where they satisfy the criteria of this policy (sub-paragraph B). 
 
Policy CCW19 – supports new residential, commercial and community development 
proposals being served by superfast broadband (fibre-optic). Where this is not 
possible, practical or viable, the development should incorporate ducting for potential 
future installation.  
 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) and Supplementary Planning 
Guidance (SPGs) 
 
SPG (Lingfield Village Design Statement), adopted in January 2002, seeks to ensure 
that the village retains its individuality and character through future development both 
large and small.  It provides general guidelines for new development and requires 
amongst other things that the design of new buildings should be sympathetic to the 
style of buildings in the locality both in size and materials.  
 
SPG (Woldingham Village Design Statement) adopted in September 2005 provides 
guidance for development within Woldingham.  Residential extensions should respect 
the size and proportions of the original house and plot.  Boundary treatments should 
maintain the rural street scene, imposing entrances are out of keeping, and front 
boundaries should be screened with plantings or have low open wooded fences. 
 
SPD (Woldingham Design Guidance) adopted March 2011 and seeks to; promote 
good design, protect and enhance the high quality character of the area, and to apply 
design principles on a sub-area basis to maintain and reinforce character. 
 
SPD (Harestone Valley Design Guidance) adopted March 2011 and seeks to; promote 
good design, protect and enhance the high quality character of the area, and to apply 
design principles on a sub-area basis to maintain and reinforce character. 
 
SPD (Tandridge Parking Standards) adopted September 2012 sets out standards for 
residential and non-residential vehicular parking and standards for bicycle parking.  
 
SPD (Tandridge Trees and Soft Landscaping) adopted November 2017 sets out the 
Council’s approach to the integration of new and existing trees and soft landscaping 
into new development, and seeks to ensure that trees are adequately considered 
throughout the development process.   

Page 14



 
 

 

 
National Advice 

 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) constitutes guidance for local 
planning authorities and decision-takers both in drawing up plans and as 
a material consideration in determining applications. It sets out the Government’s 
planning policies for England and how these are expected to be applied. It states that 
there are three dimensions to sustainable development: economic, social and 
environmental, and confirms the presumption in favour of sustainable forms of 
development which it states should be seen as a golden thread running through both 
plan-making and decision-taking. 
 
The Government has also published national Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) 
which is available online and covers a number of policy areas and topics.  
 
 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



ITEM 5.1 
 
Application: 2020/1138 
 
Location: Woodland Court,1 Harestone Drive, Caterham, Surrey, CR3 6HX 
 
Proposal: Demolition of existing 3 x two storey terraced houses. Erection of 

a two storey 8-bedroom Care Home with associated parking. 
Change of Use of site from C3 to C2. 

 
Ward:  Harestone 
 
Decision: Planning Committee 
 
Constraints – TPO within 10m, TPO 3/C&W, AWOOD, Urban Area, ‘D’ Classified 
Road, Special Residential Character Area, Surface Water Flood Risk, Biggin Hill 
Height Zone, Source Protection Zones 2 and 3. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   PERMIT subject to conditions 
 
This application is reported to Committee following a Member request from Cllr 
Beverley Connolly. 
 
Summary 
 

1. The proposal seeks the demolition of existing 3 x two storey terraced houses, 
the erection of a two storey 8-bedroom Care Home with associated parking and 
change of Use of site from C3 to C2. There is no objection in principle to the 
development and the key issues relate to the potential loss of residential use, 
impact on the character of the area, amenities of neighbouring properties, 
highways and parking provision, renewable energy, trees/landscaping, ecology 
and biodiversity. 
 

2. There would be no significant harm to the amenities of the neighbouring 
properties or to the character and appearance of the area including the impact 
on trees and ecology. Adequate parking and renewable energy provision would 
be provided. There is no objection in relation to the loss of the buildings.  

 
Site Description  
 

3. The site is located within the built-up area of Caterham with the locality 
predominantly residential in nature. The site is accessed via a narrow, single 
width road off Harestone Valley Road which also serves a number of residential 
properties. The application site forms the eastern part of the former Marie Curie 
site and is currently occupied by a terrace of three uninhabitable dwellings, the 
site is flat in appearance. There are mature trees located along the south-
eastern boundary but are not protected by a TPO. 

 
Relevant History 
 

4. In 2019, under application 2019/2008 planning permission was granted for the 
variation of condition 2 (Approved Plans) and Condition 6 (Tree Planting Plan) 
of planning permission ref: 2016/1727 dated 18/05/2017 to allow amendments 
to trees as shown on the approved plans (Demolition of existing office buildings. 
Erection of 4 detached dwellings.) 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5.1



5. In 2016, under application 2016/1727, planning permission was granted for the 
demolition of existing office buildings and erection of 4 detached dwellings. 

 
6. In 2014, under application TA/2014/384, planning permission was granted for 

the erection of a building comprising 24 apartments, 3 terraced houses and a 
detached house. This application related to the western part of the former Marie 
Curie site. 

 
7. An application, TA/2013/1598, relating to the erection of an apartment building 

comprising of 24 apartments of 12 x 2 bed apartments and 12 x 1 bed 
apartments, a 14 bed care home, 3 terraced houses (1 x 2 bed and 2 x 3 bed), 
a detached house and an office building for support staff was submitted but 
subsequently withdrawn. 

 
8. In 2012, permission was refused under reference TA/2011/1316 for the 

erection of a building comprising 25 apartment (15x2 bed and 10x1 bed 
apartments), 20 bed care home, 3 terraced houses (2 x 3 bedroom houses with 
garages and 1 x 2 bedroom house), a pair of semi-detached houses (2 x 5 
bedrooms) and a two storey office building with office accommodation in the 
roof space with parking, pedestrian/vehicular access road, bike and bin stores. 
This application was subsequently dismissed on appeal. 

 
9. In 2011, a notification for the demolition of the 3 storey Marie Curie hospice 

building, 2 storey former care home and office building, single storey 
prefabricated timber building and single storey office building was received 
under application TA/2011/1082. No objection was raised to this notification. 
There have been numerous historic applications on site however none are 
pertinent to the determination of this planning application. 

 
10. In 2020, permission was refused for the demolition of the office buildings, 

erection of 7x two-storey detached dwellings. Construction of access road from 
Harestone Drive and provision of associated parking and landscaping under 
application 2020/511.  This application is currently at appeal. The LPA’s 
reasons for refusal were: 
 

1. Due to the quantum and spread of built form across the site the 
proposal would result in a cramped and incongruous development that 
would fail to reinforce and respect the existing development pattern of 
the surrounding area, including the Harestone Valley Area of Special 
Residential Character. As such the proposal is contrary to Policy CSP18 
of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008, Policies DP7 and DP8 of 
the Tandridge District Local Plan: Part 2 - Detailed Policies (2014), the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and the Harestone Valley 
Design Guidance (2011).  

 
An appeal was made against this decision and permission was allowed on 
appeal on the 5th May 2021. 

 
11. In 2021, planning permission was granted at Planning Committee on the 29th 

April 2021 for the Demolition of existing office buildings. Erection of 5 detached 
dwellings under application 2020/1404. 
 

12. The wider site known as the former Marie Curie Hospice Site has been subject 
to a number of complaints since 2011/2012.  While some breaches exist on site 
(currently under investigation) and some have been rectified (untidy land) this 
is not material to the determination of this application. 
 

Page 18



Key Issues 
 

13. Given the above history, the key issues relate to the potential loss of residential 
use, the impact on the character of the area, amenities of neighbouring 
properties, highways and parking provision, loss of buildings, renewable 
energy, trees, ecology and biodiversity. 

 
Proposal  
 

14. The proposal seeks the demolition of existing 3 x two storey terraced houses, 
the erection of a two storey 8-bedroom Care Home with associated parking and 
change of Use of site from C3 to C2.  The building would front onto Harestone 
Drive and would be two stories in scale with a front facing two storey gable 
feature and a catslide roof to the north-west.  Four parking spaces would be 
sited to the front of the building and a communal amenity area would be 
provided to the rear.  

 
Development Plan Policy 
 

15. Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 – Policies CSP1, CSP4, CSP7, CSP11, 
CSP12, CSP13, CSP14, CSP15, CSP17, CSP18, CSP19 and CSP22 

 
16. Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies – Policies DP1, DP4, DP5, 

DP7, DP9, DP18, DP19, DP20, DP22. 
 

17. Woldingham Neighbourhood Plan 2016 – not applicable. 
 

18. Limpsfield Neighbourhood Plan 2019 – not applicable. 
 

19. Caterham, Chaldon and Whyteleafe (CC&W) Neighbourhood Plan 2021 
Policies CCW1, CCW2, CCW3, CCW4, CCW5 and CCW6 
 

20. Emerging Tandridge District Local Plan (2033) – Policies TLP01, TLP02, 
TLP06, TLP10, TLP11, TLP18, TLP19, TLP30, TLP35, TLP37, TLP44, TLP45, 
TLP47 

 
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs), Supplementary Planning Guidance 
(SPGs) and non-statutory guidance 
 

21. Tandridge Parking Standards SPD (2012) 
 

22. Harestone Valley Design Guidance SPD (2011)  
 

23. Site of the former Marie Curie Hospice, Harestone Drive, Caterham – Urban 
Design Concept Statement (2010) 
 

24. Marie Curie Urban Design Concept Statement 
 

25. Surrey Design Guide (2002)  
 
National Advice 
 

22 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2021) 
 

23. Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)  
 
 

Page 19



Statutory Consultation Responses 
 

24. SCC Highways – No objection subject to the conditions set out in the agenda  
 

25. The Environment Agency - No objection subject to the conditions set out in the 
agenda  

 
26. Caterham Valley Parish Council – Object: 

 

 Breaches of planning control 

 Cramped 

 Insufficient parking 

 Lack of staff facilities 

 Poor design 

 No need for care provision 

 Against the Harestone Valley Design Guide 

 Inadequate internal living space 

 Lack of a turning circle 
 
Non-statutory Advice Received 
 

27. Surrey Wildlife Trust – Opportunities to improve ecological and biodiversity 
exist, no objection. 

 
TDC advice  
 

28. Senior Tree Officer – The Councils Tree Officer was approached regarding this 
application given the planning history on the site.  No concerns or objections 
have been raised subject to the imposition of a tree protection condition.  The 
comments of the Senior Tree Officer are incorporated below within the 
considerations section of this report. 
 

Other Representations 
 

29. Third Party Comments  
 

 Lack of parking/increase in local traffic [Officer Comment: this is covered 
in paragraphs 58-59]  

 Highway safety concerns/lack of footpath [Officer Comment: this is 
covered in paragraphs 58-59] 

 Refuse/cycle storage areas not depicted [Officer Comment: this is 
covered in paragraph 44] 

 Poor design/lack of fenestration/inappropriate bulk/massing [Officer 
Comment: this is covered in paragraphs 34-45] 

 Breaches of planning control exist [Officer Comment: this matter has 
been addressed within paragraph 12 and is part of a separate process 
to the application before the Committee ] 

 Loss of housing [Officer Comment: this is covered in paragraph 33] 

 Overdevelopment [Officer Comment: this is covered in paragraphs 34-
45] 

 Emergency access issues [Officer Comment: this is covered in 
paragraphs 58-59] 

 Weak trees/potential tree loss [Officer Comment: this is covered in 
paragraphs 52-54] 

 Lack of staff facilities [Officer Comment: [Officer Comment: this is 
covered in paragraphs 70-71] 

Page 20



 Location of the building, welcomes its set back [Officer Comment: this 
is covered in paragraphs 34-45] 

 Pleased development will finally happen [Officer Comment: duly noted] 

 Independence Homes will make good their promise to resurface the 
road [Officer Comment: this is a matter that could be secured through 
this planning application as it would not meet the S106 tests] 

 
Assessment  
 

Principle of Development 
 

30. The site is located within Caterham, a Category 1 settlement where 
development should be directed towards and as such the proposal complies 
with the requirements of policy CSP1.   
 

31. Planning permission was granted under ref 2014/384 for the erection of building 
comprising 24 apartments, 3 terraced houses and a detached house.  This 
permission has been implemented but the dwellings are incomplete and 
uninhabitable. 

 
Site Layout Plan for 2014/384 

 
 

32. The previous appeal decision and further permissions are significant material 
considerations in the determination of this application. As has been established 
by them, and with no change in policy that indicates otherwise, the principle of 
development on this site remains acceptable and, in fact, encouraged.  
 

33. In addition to the above, representations received during the course of the 
application have stated that the proposal would result in the loss of residential 
dwellings (Use Class C3).  The site prior to 2014 was not in C3 use and the 
dwellings currently on site are uninhabitable as such there would be no loss of 
such residential units (C3).  Regardless, the proposal would result in the 
erection of a Care Home of which a need is demonstrated by the local plan and 
can be supported in principle.  

 
 

Page 21



Character and Appearance 
 

34. Policy CSP18 of the Core Strategy 2008 requires new development to be of a 
high standard of design that must reflect and respect the character, setting and 
local context, including those features that contribute to local distinctiveness. 
Policy CSP21 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 advises that the 
character and distinctiveness of the Districts landscapes and countryside will 
be protected for their own sake and that new development will be required to 
conserve and enhance landscape character.  

 
35. Policy DP7 of the Local Plan 2014 provides the Council’s general policy for new 

development and requires proposals to respect and contribute to 
distinctiveness of the area in which it is located and to have a complementary 
building design and materials. 

 
36. Policy CCW4 of the CC&W Neighbourhood Plan relates to the character of 

development and sets out an expectation to preserve and enhance the 
character area in which it is located. Policy CCW5 relates to the design of 
development which should integrate well with the surroundings, meet the needs 
of residents and minimise the impact on the local environment. The policy 
contains seven criteria which should be incorporated into new development and 
thereby demonstrate a high-quality design.  
 

37. The site is located within area D ‘Valley and Eastern Valley Slopes’ as defined 
in the Harestone Valley Character Assessment (HVCA). The HVCA defines the 
area as follows: 

 
“the over arching character of this area is formed by development on roads as 
this is the most visible within the area. However, many of the roads descend 
into the valley floor and provide good views across the western slopes. Similarly 
more open areas as at the former Marie Currie Hospice site and centrally 
between Harestone Valley Road and Harestone Hill provide good views to the 
western hillside and the skyline. The more open stretch of Harestone Valley 
Road enables views up the valley sides from the valley floor.” 

 
38. In terms of landscape character, in relation to the application site, the HVCA 

comments; 
 

“terracing and steep banks characterise some of the large plots on the steeper 
lower slopes of the valley as at the former Marie Curie Hospice. However, most 
of the development in this area has been without the use of retaining walls and 
with houses set into the slopes or shallow terraces.” 

 
39. Typically, the development form in Harestone Valley is predominantly detached 

buildings and individually designed houses. These houses are clearly defining 
the sinuous road layout. The townscape character of Harestone Valley can be 
separated into the following features:  

 
■ Building lines, plot and development rhythm;  
■  Relationships between buildings; and  
■ Building types. 

 
40. As set out earlier in this report, it must be acknowledged that planning 

permission has been granted under application 2014/384 for the erection of a 
building comprising 24 apartments, 3 terraced houses and a detached house.  
This permission supports the fact that the redevelopment of the site is 
appropriate. 

Page 22



 
41. The character of the area is predominantly residential in nature, generally 

consisting of detached properties although there is flatted development also in 
the locality. 
 

42. The redevelopment of the site would consist of the construction of a two-storey 
building designed to appear as a large detached house.  The internal 
configuration is that of an 8-bedroom with lounge and dining areas with access 
onto an amenity area to the rear; four parking spaces would be provided 
towards the front.  The proposed development would appear as a detached 
dwelling and would sit comfortably within the street scene and wider locality. 
 

43. Representations have raised concerns over the design of the building stating 
the lack of details in respect of fenestration and its poor articulation.  In 
response, the site sits in an established residential area and while the 
development would be clearly visible from the north-western approach it cannot 
be defined as a landmark site given its cul-de-sac location.  Policies CSP18 
and DP7 require proposals amongst other matters to respect and reflect the 
local vernacular.  The design proposal does exactly that, it is a two-storey 
detached building with 45 degree pitch roofs, two storey gable features and 
consistent eaves heights.  On the coloured elevations the applicant has shown 
the building to be constructed from brick with brick headers and detailing to the 
front gable.  Officers are therefore of the opinion that the building has been 
designed to respect and maintain the character and appearance of the area 
and would result in an acceptable design. 
 

44. Greater levels of separation would be provided between the proposed building 
and neighbouring properties to that shown in application 2014/384 and what 
currently exist on site.  The proposal would not appear cramped nor would it 
result in an overdevelopment of the site.  The surrounding area is residential in 
character comprising of large detached dwellings varying in period and design.  
The design approach is traditional and would sit well within the street scene.  
Adequate space is provided to ensure that an appropriate landscaping scheme 
could be secured at the condition stage, such spacing would respect the 
verdant character of Harestone Drive. Details of refuse and bicycle storage is 
capable of being provided on site and the details would be secured at the 
condition stage. 

 
45. For these reasons, it is considered that the proposal would comply with Policy 

DP7, Core Strategy Policy CSP18, Policies CCW4 and CCW5 of the CC&W 
Neighbourhood Plan (2020) and the Harestone Valley Design Guide.   

 
Amenities of neighbouring properties 
 

46. Policy CSP18 of the Core Strategy advises that development must not 
significantly harm the amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring properties by 
reason of overlooking, overshadowing, visual intrusion, noise, traffic and any 
adverse effect.  Criterions 6-9 of Policy DP7 of the Local Plan Part 2: Detailed 
Policies seek also to safeguard amenity, including minimum privacy distances 
that will be applied to new development proposals.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



47. The development would be well separated from neighbouring properties and 
given the height and arrangement of neighbouring properties would not appear 
visually intrusive.  The siting of windows on the proposed building have been 
designed to avoid any direct overlooking while offering appropriate levels of 
outlook. The care home would provide accommodation for 8 individuals and as 
such would attract low visitor numbers and/or staff movements when compared 
to a larger facility.  Visitor, staff and delivery movements would not be dissimilar 
to neighbouring residential properties and would largely take place during the 
daytime.  Given the small scale of development proposed it is not considered 
that the neighbouring properties would suffer from an unacceptable level of 
noise and general disturbance given the location of the site within an 
established residential area. 

 
48. For the reasons outlined, the proposal is considered acceptable in terms of the 

potential impact upon the residential amenities and privacy of existing 
properties and therefore no objection is raised in this regard against Policy DP7 
of the Local Plan (2014) and Policy CSP18 of the Core Strategy (2008). 

 
Amenities of future occupiers  
 

49. The Technical housing standards – nationally described space standard 2015 
sets out requirements for the Gross Internal (floor) Area of new dwellings at a 
defined level of occupancy as well as floor areas and dimensions for key parts 
of the home, notably bedrooms, storage and floor to ceiling height.  While not 
formally adopted by this Council and are not directly relevant to Care Homes it 
does however provide a guide as to acceptable room sizes.  

 
50. Policy DP7 of the Detailed Policies 2014 states that new development will be 

granted when the following matters are addressed…Environment: The 
proposals provide a satisfactory environment for the occupiers of both the 
existing and new development… Facilities: The proposal provides appropriate 
facilities for individual and communal use including bicycle storage, amenity 
areas and garden areas (proportionate to the size of the residential units and 
appropriate for the intended occupiers); as well as facilities for the storage and 
collection of refuse and recycling materials which are designed and sited in 
accordance with current Council standards, avoiding adverse impacts on the 
street scene and the amenities of the proposed and existing properties. 

 
51. All eight bedrooms would exceed the minimum space standards for double 

bedrooms and all would be provided with an en-suite bathroom.  In addition, all 
8 bedrooms would have access to communal living, dining and outdoor amenity 
spaces and an access lift would be provided within the communal hall; any 
overrun would be accommodated within the roofspace.  The internal 
configuration is one typical of a single-family dwelling and does not suffer from 
an institutional arrangement, the configuration of the Care Home would 
therefore provide a familiar family setting which would benefit the wellbeing of 
future residents.  For these reasons the proposal is considered to provide 
appropriate amenities for future occupiers in accordance with Policy DP7 of the 
Detailed Policies 2014 and the Technical housing standards – nationally 
described space standard 2015. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



Trees 
 

52. Policy CSP18 of the Core Strategy required that development must have 
regard to the topography of the site, important trees and groups of trees and 
other important features that need to be retained. Criterion 13 of the Local Plan 
Policy DP7 required that where trees are present on a proposed development 
site, a landscaping scheme should be submitted alongside the planning 
application which makes the provision for retention of existing trees that are 
important by virtue of their significance within the local landscape.  

 
53. The Tandridge Trees and Soft Landscaping SPD (2017) outlines the 

importance of landscaping which applies to urban and rural areas and advises 
that it is ‘essential that the design of the spaces around building is given the 
same level of consideration from the outset as the design of building 
themselves’. Trees are not only a landscape environmental benefit but, as the 
SPD outlines, a health benefit for people which enhances their environment.  
 

54. In this instance, as the recently built dwellings are to be demolished and 
replaced largely within the same footprint with a new building, the arboricultural 
implications are insignificant. An arboricultural report has been provided, and 
this is sufficient to demonstrate how the retained trees can be protected from 
harm.  As such it is recommended that a condition is applied which requires 
compliance with the already submitted arboricultural report in addition to a 
detailed landscaping condition to ensure that the proposal integrates with its 
verdant setting. The proposed development is not considered to result in an 
unacceptable loss of visually important or protected trees while soft 
landscaping is capable of being secured through condition.  The proposal 
would therefore comply with the above policies and is acceptable in this 
respect.    

 
Ecology 
 

55. Policy CSP17 of the Core Strategy states that development proposals should 
protect biodiversity and provide for the maintenance, enhancement, restoration 
and, if possible, expansion of biodiversity, by aiming to restore or create 
suitable semi-natural habitats and ecological networks to sustain wildlife in 
accordance with the aims of the Surrey Biodiversity Action Plan. 

 
56. Policy DP19 of the Local Plan states that in order to conserve and enhance the 

natural environment, proposals which would result in significant harm to local, 
national or statutory sites of biological or geological importance or the broader 
GI network will be refused planning permission unless:  

 
1. All reasonable alternative locations with less harmful impacts are 

demonstrated to be unsuitable; and  
2. The proposal incorporates measures to avoid the harmful impacts  

 
57. Surrey Wildlife Trust raised no objection as part of this application on ecological 

grounds but have recommended informatives to address matters concerning 
nesting birds; a condition is not deemed reasonable as such matter are covered 
under separate legislation.  The development is therefore acceptable having 
regards to the above policies. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



Highways and parking 
 

58. Policy CSP12 of the Core Strategy advises that new development proposals 
should have regard to adopted highway design standards and vehicle/other 
parking standards. Criterion 3 of Policy DP7 of the Local Plan also required 
new development to have regard to adopted parking standards and Policy DP5 
seeks to ensure that development does not impact highway safety. 

 
59. Surrey County Highways Authority raised no objection on highway safety or 

efficiency grounds; adequate levels of parking have been provided for the use 
proposed.  The Tandridge Parking Standards does not provide a minimum 
number of parking spaces for Care Homes but seeks to provide parking on a 
site by site assessment; the level of parking is therefore considered acceptable 
by the CHA and the LPA.  No further highway improvements are considered 
necessary and the CHA have not recommended that a Construction Transport 
Management Plan is secured via condition.  The development is therefore 
acceptable in this regard subject to the conditions set out in the agenda. 

 
Renewable energy 
 

60. Policy CSP14 of the Core Strategy required new development of 1-9 units to 
achieve a minimum 10% saving in CO2 emissions through the provision of 
renewable energy technologies.  The submitted energy statement identifies 
that a 36.93% reduction in carbon dioxide emissions would be achieved from 
the installation of photovoltaic panels. 

 
61. This reduction accords with Policy CSP14 and will be secured by an 

appropriately worded condition. 
 
Biodiversity 
 

62. Paragraph 174 of the NPPF 2021 states that, Planning policies and decisions 
should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by:  

 
a) protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or 
geological value and soils (in a manner commensurate with their statutory 
status or identified quality in the development plan);  
b) recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside, and the 
wider benefits from natural capital and ecosystem services – including the 
economic and other benefits of the best and most versatile agricultural land, 
and of trees and woodland;  
c) maintaining the character of the undeveloped coast, while improving public 
access to it where appropriate;  
d) minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including by 
establishing coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to current and 
future pressures;  
e) preventing new and existing development from contributing to, being put at 
unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of 
soil, air, water or noise pollution or land instability. Development should, 
wherever possible, help to improve local environmental conditions such as air 
and water quality, taking into account relevant information such as river basin 
management plans; and  
f) remediating and mitigating despoiled  
 
 
 

Page 26



63. Policy CSP 17 of the Core Strategy states, Development proposals should 
protect biodiversity and provide for the maintenance, enhancement, restoration 
and, if possible, expansion of biodiversity, by aiming to restore or create 
suitable semi-natural habitats and ecological networks to sustain wildlife in 
accordance with the aims of the Surrey Biodiversity Action Plan.   
 

64. DP19: Biodiversity, Geological Conservation & Green Infrastructure A. There 
will be a presumption in favour of development proposals which seek to: 
 

65. A. Protect, enhance or increase the provision of, and access to the network of 
multi-functional Green Infrastructure (GI); 
 

 Promote nature conservation and management; 

 Restore or create Priority Habitats; or 

 Maximise opportunities for geological conservation. 
 

66. B. In order to conserve and enhance the natural environment, proposals which 
would result in significant harm to local, national or statutory sites of biological 
or geological importance or the broader GI network will be refused planning 
permission unless: 
 

 All reasonable alternative locations with less harmful impacts are 
demonstrated to be unsuitable; and 

 The proposal incorporates measures to avoid the harmful impacts 
arising, sufficiently mitigate their effects, or, as a last resort, 
compensate for them. 
 

67. C. Where a proposal is likely to result in direct or indirect harm to an 
irreplaceable environmental asset of the highest designation, such as a Site of 
Special Scientific Interest (SSSI), ancient woodland or veteran trees, the 
granting of planning permission will be wholly exceptional. 
 

 With regard to SSSIs, exceptions will only be made where benefits of 
development at the site clearly outweigh both the impacts on the 
features of the site and on any broader networks of SSSIs. 

 In the case of ancient woodland and veteran trees exceptions will only 
be made where the need for and benefits of the development in that 
location clearly outweigh the loss. 

 In all cases, any impacts or harm should not just be mitigated, but 
overall ecological benefits should be delivered. 
 

68. D. Planning permission for development directly or indirectly affecting protected 
or Priority species will only be permitted where it can be demonstrated that the 
species involved will not be harmed or appropriate mitigation measures can be 
put in place. 
 

69. The proposed development would not result in the loss of any trees on site and 
the existing trees would be protected as set out in the Arboricultural Report; 
which would be secured via condition.  The remainder of the site is either 
covered by hardstanding or deposited hardcore and there is very little to no 
biodiversity on site.  The proposed development would introduce soft 
landscaping to the front and rear of the site with details to be secured at the 
condition stage.  Given that the proposal would introduce opportunities for soft 
landscaping above the current position on site the proposal is considered to 
result in a biodiversity net gain.  As such the proposal would comply with the 
above policies and NPPF 2021. 

 

Page 27



Flooding 
 

70. Paragraph 167 of the NPPF 2021 advises that; When determining any planning 
applications, local planning authorities should ensure that flood risk is not 
increased elsewhere. Where appropriate, applications should be supported by 
a site-specific flood-risk assessment. Development should only be allowed in 
areas at risk of flooding where, in the light of this assessment (and the 
sequential and exception tests, as applicable) it can be demonstrated that:  
 
a) within the site, the most vulnerable development is located in areas of lowest 

flood risk, unless there are overriding reasons to prefer a different location;  
b) the development is appropriately flood resistant and resilient;  
c) it incorporates sustainable drainage systems, unless there is clear evidence 

that this would be inappropriate;  
d) any residual risk can be safely managed; and  
e) safe access and escape routes are included where appropriate, as part of 

an agreed emergency plan. 
 

71. Policy DP21 of the Tandridge District Local Plan Part 2: Detailed Policies 2014 
advises that proposals should seek to secure opportunities to reduce both the 
cause and impact of flooding.  
 

72. The application site does not lie within Flood Zone 2 or 3, the areas at the 
highest risk where development should be avoided.  The site lies within an area 
of surface water flooding and therefore drainage details have been submitted 
in support of this application, as part of the Flood Risk Assessment.  There 
would be little difference in run off rates from the existing and proposed 
development as a result of this application.  The applicant therefore proposes 
the use of SuDS to protect against an increase of surface water given the 
impact of climate change.   
 

73. Officers are therefore satisfied that the proposed development would not 
increase the risk over and above that which is currently exists on site and that 
SuDS have been incorporated.  As a result of the combined mitigation 
measures the proposed development has sought to reduce the cause and 
impact of flooding and the proposal would comply with Policy DP21 and the 
provisions of the NPPF 2021 
 

Other Matters 
 

74. Representations have raised concerns that there is a lack of staff facilities 
within the proposed layout.  Within the local the plan there is no defined policy 
that sets out what facilities are required nor a minimum size requirement in 
respect of staff facilities within Care Homes.  As a result of the comments from 
third parties the agent was approached in this respect; the following comments 
were received: 
 

With regard to the lack of staff facilities / break-out areas, we rarely 
provide these in care homes.  The staff generally work shorter half-day 
shifts, so don’t get long breaks.  The staff generally work on the basis 
of 2 carers per resident and the staff are expected to stay with the 
resident at all times.  Any short tea-breaks would be taken in the dining 
room, which is unused between meal times. A separate staff area is 
therefore not required.  
 
 
 

Page 28



75. Officers are therefore satisfied that the kitchen and dining areas can be utilised 
by both residents and staff and provide acceptable staff facilities.  Staff will be 
working shifts and as such there is no need for overnight accommodation in 
this respect.  Without any policy justification the LPA are not in a position to 
request a separate staff break out area or staff room. 
 

Conclusion  
 

76. In conclusion, the proposals would result in a form of development which would 
be compatible with the character of the area and would not result in a harmful 
impact on the amenities of neighbouring residents.   

 
77. There would be no harm to the character and appearance of the site or that of 

the wider surrounding area subject to conditions requiring details of external 
facing materials, hard and soft landscaping and boundary treatments. 
Renewable energy technology will be secured through a condition to accord 
with Policy CSP14 of the Core Strategy. For the reasons set out in this report, 
the proposal is considered acceptable and therefore permission is 
recommended to be granted subject to the conditions outlined. 

 
78. This development is CIL liable.  

 
79. In addition to CIL the development proposed will attract New Homes Bonus 

payments and as set out in Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
(as amended by Section 143 of the Localism Act) these are local financial 
considerations which must be taken into account, as far as they are material to 
the application, in reaching a decision. It has been concluded that the proposal 
accords with the Development Plan and whilst the implementation and 
completion of the development will result in a local financial benefit this is not a 
matter that needs to be given significant weight in the determination of this 
application.  

 
80. The recommendation is made in light of the National Planning Policy 

Framework (NPPF) and the Government’s Planning Practice Guidance 
(PPG).  It is considered that in respect of the assessment of this application 
significant weight has been given to policies within the Council’s Core Strategy 
2008 and the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014 in 
accordance with paragraph 213 of the NPPF. Due regard as a material 
consideration has been given to the NPPF and PPG in reaching this 
recommendation. 

 
81. All other material considerations, including third party comments, have been 

considered but none are considered sufficient to change the recommendation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



RECOMMENDATION: PERMIT subject to conditions  
 

1.  The development hereby permitted shall start not later than the expiration 
of 3 years from the date of this permission. 
 

 Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004. 

 
2.  This decision refers to drawings numbered P002 Rev A, P012A, P020, P030 

Rev A.  The development shall be carried out in accordance with these 
approved drawings.  There shall be no variations from these approved 
drawings. 
 

 Reason: To ensure that the scheme proceeds as set out in the planning 
application and therefore remains in accordance with the Development Plan. 

 
3.  No development approved by this planning permission shall take place until 

a remediation strategy that includes the following components to deal with the 
risks associated with contamination of the site shall each be submitted to and 
approved, in writing, by the local planning authority: 
 

1. A preliminary risk assessment which has identified: 

 All previous uses 

 Potential contaminants associated with this uses 

 A conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways 
and receptors  

 Potentially unacceptable risks arising from the contamination 
at the site 

2. A site investigation scheme, based on (1) to provide information for a 
detailed assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected 
by those off site. 

3. The results of the site investigation and the detailed risk assessment 
referred to in (2) and, based on these, an options appraisal and 
remediation strategy giving full details of the remediation measures 
required and how they are to be undertaken 

4. A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in 
order to demonstrate that the works set out in the remediation strategy 
in (3) are complete and identifying any requirements for longer-term 
monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for 
contingency action. 

 
Any changes to these components require the express written consent of 
the local planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented as 
approved 
 
Reason: to reduce risk to controlled waters. Controlled water are 
particularly sensitive in this location because the site lies upon a Principal 
aquifer within SPZ2.  Due to the vulnerability of the aquifer ever precaution 
be taken to prevent any pollution of groundwater 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



4.  No occupations of any part of the permitted development shall take place until 
a verification report demonstrating completion of works set out in the 
approved remediation strategy and the effectiveness of the remediation shall 
be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the local planning authority.  The 
report shall include results of sampling and monitoring carried out in 
accordance with the approved verification plan to demonstrate that the site 
remediation criteria have been met.  It shall also include and plan (a “long-
term monitoring and maintenance plan”) for longer-term monitoring of 
pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action, as 
identified in the verification plan.  The long-term monitoring and maintenance 
plan shall be implemented as approved. 
 
Reason: Should remediation be deemed necessary; the applicant should 
demonstrate that any remedial measures have been undertaken as agreed 
and the environmental risks have been satisfactorily managed so that the site 
is deemed suitable for use.  To comply with the National Planning Policy 
Framework 
  

5.  If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be 
present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority) shall be carried out until the 
developer has submitted a remediation strategy to the local planning authority 
detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with and obtained 
written approval from the Local Planning Authority.  The remediation strategy 
shall be implemented as approved. 
 
Reason: to reduce risk to controlled waters.  There is always the potential for 
unexpected contamination to be identified during development groundworks.    
 

6.  No works above ground level (excluding demolition) shall commence until 
samples of the external facing materials to be used in the construction of the 
external surfaces of the building hereby permitted have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development 
shall be carried out in accordance with these approved details. 
 

 Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to exercise control over the 
type and colour of materials, so as to enhance the development and to ensure 
that the new works harmonise with the existing building. 

 
7. No works above ground level shall commence until full details of both hard and 

soft landscape works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved. 
These details shall include: 
 

 proposed finished levels or contours 

 means of enclosure 

 car parking layouts and bollards 

 other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas 

 hard surfacing materials 

 SuD’s 

 minor artefacts and structures (eg. furniture, play equipment, refuse or      
other storage units, signs, lighting etc.).   

 
 
 
 

Page 31



Details of soft landscape works shall include all proposed and retained trees, 
hedges and shrubs; ground preparation, planting specifications and ongoing 
maintenance, together with details of areas to be grass seeded or turfed.  
Planting schedules shall include details of species, plant sizes and proposed 
numbers/densities.  
 
All new planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season 
following the completion or occupation of any part of the development 
(whichever is the sooner) or otherwise in accordance with a programme to be 
agreed.  Any trees or plants (including those retained as part of the 
development) which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the 
development die, are removed, or, in the opinion of the District Planning 
Authority, become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next 
planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the District 
Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. The hard landscape 
works shall be carried out prior to the occupation of the development.  
 
Reason: To maintain and enhance the visual amenities of the development  
 

8. No demolition, site clearance or building operations shall commence until  
the tree protection measures detailed within the Arboricultural Report by Anna 
French Associates dated October 2020 and Plan No 278-003 Rev PL1 have 
been implemented. Thereafter these measures shall be retained and any 
specified staging of works strictly adhered to throughout the course of 
development, and shall not be varied without the written agreement of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
In any event, the following restrictions shall be strictly observed unless 
otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority: 
 
(a) No bonfires shall take place within the root protection area (RPA) or 

within a position where heat could affect foliage or branches. 
(b) No further trenches, drains or service runs shall be sited within the RPA 

of any retained trees.  
(c) No further changes in ground levels or excavations shall take place 

within the RPA of any retained trees. 
 
Reason: To prevent damage to trees in the interest of the visual 
amenities of the area in accordance with Policy CSP18 of the Tandridge District 
Core Strategy 2008 and Policy DP7 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – 
Detailed Policies 2014.  
 

9. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority the 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the Preliminary Ecological 
Appraisal dated August 2020 and the Bat Survey Report dated September 
2020 both by Grove Ecology. 
 
Reason: to safeguard ecological interests 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



10. The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless and until at 
least 1 of the available parking spaces are provided with a fast charge socket 
(current minimum requirement: 7kw Mode 3 with Type 2 connector – 230 v AC 
32 amp single phase dedicated supply) in accordance with a scheme to be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
 
Reason: to ensure that the development would not prejudice highway safety 
nor cause inconvenience to other highway users and/or are required in 
recognition of Section 9 'Promoting Sustainable Transport' in the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2019. 

 
11. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until 

the following facilities have been provided in accordance with the approved 
plans for the secure parking of bicycles within the development site, and 
therefore the said approved facilities shall be provided, retained and maintained 
to the satisfaction of the Local Planning authority. 
 
Reason: to ensure that the development would not prejudice highway safety 
nor cause inconvenience to other highway users and/or are required in 
recognition of Section 9 'Promoting Sustainable Transport' in the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2019. 
 

12. Prior to works above ground level the following details shall be submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing: 

 

 Refuse and Bicycle storage; 

 Security lighting 
 

Prior to the occupation of the development the above shall be provided on site 
in accordance with the approved details and retained thereafter in the approved 
form. 

 
Reason: to ensure that the development is accordance with the development 
plan. 

 
13. Before the development hereby approved is occupied the solar photovoltaics 

as specified in the application details shall be installed and this system shall 
thereafter be retained in accordance with the approved details in perpetuity. 
 
Reason: To ensure on-site renewable energy provision to enable the 
development to actively contribute to the reduction of carbon dioxide emissions 
in accordance with CSP14 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008. 

 
Informatives: 
 

1. Condition 2 refers to the drawings hereby approved. Non-material amendments 
can be made under the provisions of Section 96A of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 and you should contact the case officer to discuss whether 
a proposed amendment is likely to be non-material. Minor material 
amendments will require an application to vary condition 2 of this permission. 
Such an application would be made under the provisions of Section 73 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990. Major material amendments will require 
a new planning application. You should discuss whether your material 
amendment is minor or major with the case officer. Fees may be payable for 
non-material and material amendment requests. Details of the current fee can 
be found on the Council’s web site. 

 

Page 33



2. The development permitted is subject to a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
liability for which a Liability Notice will be issued. It is important that you ensure 
that the requirements of the CIL Regulations are met to ensure that you avoid 
any unnecessary surcharges and that any relevant relief or exemption is 
applied.  
 

3. The developer should take action to ensure that development activities such as 
vegetation or site clearance are timed to avoid the bird nest season of early 
March to August inclusive.  If this is not possible and only small areas of dense 
vegetation are affected, the site could be inspected for active nests by an 
ecologist within 24 hours of any clearance works.  If any active nests are found 
they should be left undisturbed with a buffer zone around the, until it can be 
confirmed by an ecologist that the nest is no longer in use. 
 

4. The applicant’s attention is drawn to the advice from the Environment Agency 
in their response dated 26th April 2021 in respect of drainage and disposal of 
soil. 
 

5. The applicant’s attention is drawn to the comments from Thames Water dated 
7th April 2021 in respect of Waste Water and Sewage Treatment. 

Page 34



²© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100018265

Woodland Court,
1 Harestone Drive,
Caterham, 
Surrey, CR3 6HX

1:1,100
TA/2020/1138

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
ITEM 5.2 
 
Application: TA/2021/82 
Location: Woodrising, The Ridge, Woldingham, Caterham, Surrey, CR3 7AG 
Proposal: Demolition of the existing building and tennis court; erection of 

two storey building with accommodation in the roof space 
comprising of 2x one bedroom, 8x two bedroom and 2x three-
bedroom flats. Provision of associated parking and landscaping 

Ward: Woldingham 
 
Decision Level: Planning Committee  
 
Constraints – GB, AGLV, AONB, ASAC, ANC-WOOD500, EA_ROFSW_1_1000 
 
RECOMMENDATION:    PERMIT subject to conditions                    
 
This application has been referred to Committee for decision by ex-Cllr Jecks 
(February 2021) and subsequently by Cllr North (July 2021). 
 
Summary 
 

1. The proposal is for the demolition of existing building and tennis court and 
construction of a two-storey building with accommodation within the attic space 
comprising 12 flats, associated parking and landscaping. The proposal is not 
considered inappropriate in the Green Belt and would respect the character 
and appearance of the prevailing area. It would also respect the local context 
and there would be no significant harm to neighbouring amenities. 
Furthermore, there would be no significant impact upon the wider highway 
network and the renewable energy provision would be acceptable. In the 
absence of any identifiable harm, it is therefore recommended that this 
application is granted planning permission.  

  
Site Description  
 

2. The application site is located on the south side of The Ridge, within a ribbon 
of residential development that fronts the highway and within the Green Belt 
area of Woldingham. The site is also within an Area of Great Landscape Value 
and just outside the Surrey Hills Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 

 
3. The site currently consists of a large two-storey building known as Woodrising 

with accommodation within the roof slope.  The building consists of ground and 
first floor residential accommodation, with the second floor converted into 3no. 
separate flats. The ground level slopes steeply at the rear of the site from north 
to south. Vehicular access is obtained via relatively a long driveway from The 
Ridge from the north-west of the site. According to the applicant, as indicated 
in the planning statement accompanying the application, the property is in 
extremely poor condition and has been placed on the market for sale for a 
number of years and is becoming dangerous given its deteriorating condition. 
The current aged owners live in one of the second-floor flats due to the 
deteriorating condition of the property. The condition of the building is 
evidenced by photographs within the submission before Members. 

 
4. The surrounding area is predominantly rural in character with sporadic 

residential properties in the immediate locality which all vary in character, form 
and design.  

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 5.2



 
 
Relevant History  
 

5. CAT/402 – Conversion to 3 flats – Approved 4th October 1949 
 
Key Issues 
 

6. The property lies within the Green Belt area of Woldingham. The key issues 
are whether the proposal constitutes inappropriate development in the Green 
Belt and, if so, whether ‘very special circumstances’ exist to clearly outweigh 
the harm by definition. Other considerations are whether the proposal would 
have an acceptable impact upon the Surrey Hills AONB, the AGLV and the 
character and appearance of the area, adjoining properties, highway safety, 
trees, ecology and whether acceptable renewable energy provision is 
proposed. 

 
Proposal  
 

7. It is proposed to demolish the existing building on site which comprises 
Woodrising and construct a two-storey replacement building within the footprint 
of the existing building with accommodation within the roof space.   
 

8. The proposed replacement building would create 12 flats comprising of 2x one 
bedroom, 8x two bedroom and 2x three-bedroom flats. The proposal includes 
the removal of the existing tennis court to create a hardstanding area for 22 car 
parking spaces for use by the occupiers of the new development.  
 

9. The resulting units would have a shared communal amenity area at the rear of 
the site and would utilise the existing vehicular access serving Woodrising and 
total parking provision of 28 spaces with six spaces (including two disabled) to 
the fore of the building. The proposals also include the provision of soft 
landscaping to soften the appearance of the development, the provision of a 
secure bicycle storage structure at the frontage of the building and a refuse 
storage located within parking area.  

 
 
Development Plan Policy 
 

10. Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 – Policies CSP1, CSP2, CSP3, CSP4, 
CSP7, CSP11, CSP12, CSP14, CSP15, CSP17, CSP18 and CSP19 

 
11. Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014 – Policies DP1, DP5, 

DP7, DP8, DP9, DP10, DP13, DP14, DP19 and DP21 
 

12. Woldingham Neighbourhood Plan 2016 – Policies L1, L2 and L3 
 

13. Limpsfield Neighbourhood Plan 2019 – Not applicable 
 

14. Caterham, Chaldon and Whyteleafe Neighbourhood Plan 2021 – not applicable 
 

15. Emerging Tandridge District Local Plan (2033) – Policies TLP01, TLP02, 
TLP03, TLP10, TLP11, TLP18, TLP19, TLP30, TLP32, TLP33, TLP34, TLP35, 
TLP37, TLP44, TLP47 
 
 

 

Page 38



 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs), Supplementary Planning Guidance 
(SPGs) and non-statutory guidance 
 

16. Tandridge Parking Standards SPD (2012) 
 

17. Tandridge Trees and Soft Landscaping SPD (2017) 
 

18. Surrey Design Guide (2002) 
 

19. Woldingham Village Design Statement (2005) 
 
National Advice 
 

20. National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2021) 
 

21. Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)  
 

22. National Design Guide (2019) 
 
Statutory Consultation Responses 
 

23. County Highway Authority – The County Highway Authority are concerned over 
the sustainability of the location however note that there are three dimensions 
to sustainable development - economic, social and environmental - hence the 
sustainability of the site should not be assessed purely in terms of transport 
mode and distance. It is also acknowledged that planning policy does permit 
the conversion and re-use of buildings and replacement dwellings in the Green 
Belt and hence some developments will not be able to meet the requirements 
of locational and transport policies. Therefore, it is for the Local Planning 
Authority to weigh up the CHA's sustainable transport advice against the other 
policies in the NPPF and the Core Strategy, particularly those relating to rural 
areas, to determine whether the proposed development would be sustainable 
in its wider sense.  The additional plans submitted by the applicant  
demonstrate that visibility splays at the access can be achieved along The 
Ridge and widening the access to allow for simultaneous entry and exit and a 
swept path plan has been provided demonstrating that a refuse vehicle is able 
to enter and leave the site in forward gear.  The proposal includes the provision 
of 28 parking spaces which meets the Surrey County Council and Tandridge 
Parking Standards and therefore this should prevent any overspill onto The 
Ridge.  

 
24 Woldingham Parish Council – Objection on the following grounds: 

 Inappropriate development in the Green Belt with no ‘Very Special 
Circumstances’ 

 Significant adverse effect on openness and significant encroachment into 
the countryside 

 The urbanisation of the site harms its AGLV location and the views from 
adjacent AONB, contrary to Woldingham Neighbourhood Plan (WNP) L1, 
CSP18 and DP7. 

 The proposal greatly harms the amenity of the adjacent property, 
Woodrising Cottage, in contravention to DP7 and WNP LI. 
 
 
 

Page 39



 
 

 The proposed car parks and outbuildings would further yield an urbanised 
view. And one car park and the cycle store would be directly adjacent to 
the garden and terrace area of the neighbour, forever ruining the sylvan 
garden enjoyment and outdoor family time on the garden and dining 
terrace. 

 Site is in a prominent location 

 Fails to reflect the character of the site and surrounding 

 The site is in an unstainable location with lack of public transport thus 
individual car transport will be required to access services, and given there 
are few in Woldingham, much further afield 

 Additional cars causing highways issues with poor visibility on the access 
road. 

 The existing building is an architectural gem, that is currently inhabited and 
capable of sympathetic restoration, in line with WNPLIC.3, to "retain 
existing examples of good quality architecture 

 
Non-statutory Consultation Responses 
 

25. Surrey Wildlife Trust – Commented as summarised below: 
 
The submitted ecological report involves the preliminary Bat Roost Assessment 
and Bat Activity Surveys.  There is no constraint or objection to the demolition 
of the building. However, the ecology report assessed the building as high roost 
suitable and should be subject to at least three dusk emergence/dawn re-entry 
surveys. However, only one dusk emergence survey has currently been 
undertaken on 9 September 2020. No Bats were seen to emerge during this 
survey. The Bat activity during the survey recorded 94 passes by Common 
pipistrelle and 100 passes by Brown long-eared bat. The ecology report 
advises further surveys to be undertaken at an appropriate time of year to 
demonstrate presence/likely absence of this species in line with best practice 
survey guidelines. Bats are protected species and therefore should be 
adequately addressed prior to determination.    
 
SWT also request that a detailed Construction and Environment Management 
Plan be submitted prior to the commencement of any development on the site 
to ensure that any protected specie4s or habitats are protected from any 
adverse impacts arising from construction activities.   
 
SWT advise that any external lighting installed on the development should 
comply with the recommendation of the Bat Conservation Trust’s document 
entitles ‘Bats and Lighting in the UK – Bats and the Built Environment Series’. 
 
It is also advised that the applicants ecologist should advise on the need for 
any further badger walkover surveys and whether the development proposals 
would have an impact on dormice.    

 
This development offers opportunities to restore or enhance biodiversity and 
such measures will assist the Local Authority in meeting the above obligation 
and help offset any localised harm to biodiversity caused by the development 
process. The development should progress in accordance with section 5.4 of 
the submitted ecology report.  In addition, the applicant should provide an 
appropriately detailed document to demonstrate that measurable net gain, 
secure for the life time of the development, will be achieved. This document 
should be submitted to the Council for approval in writing. 

Page 40



 
 

26. County AONB Advisor - The development would be within the AGLV but close 
to the AONB boundary to the south. The main protected landscape issues are 
whether the development would spoil the setting of the nearby AONB and the 
intrinsic landscape value of the AGLV. 
 
The proposed building is lower than most of the existing building. But it would 
be bulkier, wider, and deeper and its visual impact would be greater. The 
existing building has considerable character and architectural detailing. 
Conversely, the proposed building design is insufficiently sensitive to its setting 
and certainly of a lesser character. It resembles a block of flats that one would 
expect to see in a suburban location. The urban character of the rear elevation 
facing the AONB would be particularly harmful to the setting of the AONB, and 
it lacks any design finesse of the existing building. I consider it would form a 
distinctly incongruous feature in this designated landscape setting. 
 

27. Natural England – No comments received.   

 
Other Representations 
 

28. 34 Letters of objections have been received from the residents summarised 
below – The main concerns raised are as follows and where these have been 
addressed in the report also indicated: 
 

 Detrimental impact upon the openness of the Green Belt; 

 Inappropriate development in the Green Belt with no ‘Very Special 
Circumstances’ to outweigh the harm; 

 The general design, scale, bulk would impact on the character of the area; 

 No social, environmental or economic benefits; 

 Impact on wildlife and biodiversity on the site; 

 Unsustainable and isolated location; 

 Overdevelopment of the site contrary to WNP Policy L1; 

 Out of character with rural location; 

 Harm to landscape features and public views from the AONB, SSSI and 
ancient woodland; 

 Additional clutter and urban activity from domestic use harmful to character; 

 Overlooking/loss of privacy to neighbours i.e. Woodrising Cottage; 

 Other substantial harm to neighbours by way of noise, visual intrusion, 
overlooking and loss of privacy; 

 Increased traffic onto the highway network from the proposed use; 

 Dangerous from a highway safety perspective given site prominence; 

 Harm to green infrastructure on the site; 

 Impact on wildlife, nature conservation, habitats and biodiversity (including 
protected species); 

 Impact on sewage disposal and flooding; 

 Inadequate access and risk of accidents and highway safety;  

 Unsustainable location and reliant on private car and 

 The proposal would set a negative precedent in the area which would 
impact on the character and appearance of the area. 

 
 
 
 

Page 41



 
 
Assessment  
 
Procedural note 
 

29. The Tandridge District Core Strategy and Detailed Local Plan Policies predate 
the NPPF as published in 2021. However, paragraph 219 of the NPPF (Annex 
1) sets out that existing policies should not be considered out-of-date simply 
because they were adopted prior to the publication of the Framework 
document. Instead, due weight should be given to them in accordance to the 
degree of consistency with the current Framework.  

 
Principle of development  
 

30. There is capacity within existing infrastructure to accommodate the proposed 
development and there are no physical or environmental constraints to restrict 
development on the land. There is existing residential development on the site 
and in the surrounds and therefore this would not create an isolated home in 
NPPF terms. The proposed development is therefore acceptable in principle 
with regard to the location of the development in accord with Core Strategy 
Policy CSP1 including the first test of the NPPF as mentioned above. The key 
planning considerations shall hereafter be assessed. 

 
Green Belt 
 

31. The site is located within the Green Belt area of Woldingham. Paragraph 147 
of the NPPF 2021 states that inappropriate development is, by definition, 
harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special 
circumstances. Paragraph 149 provide exceptions to development which is 
considered inappropriate provided they preserve Green Belt openness and do 
not conflict with the purposes of including land within it. In this case, there are 
two relevant exceptions to this proposal.  
 

32. The first, is paragraph 149 (d) as the replacement of a building provided the 
new building is in the same use and not materially larger than the one it 
replaces. The second is paragraph 149(g) for  ‘limited infilling or the partial or 
complete redevelopment of previously developed land, whether redundant or 
in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings), which would: ‒ not have a 
greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt than the existing 
development; or ‒ not cause substantial harm to the openness of the Green 
Belt, where the development would re-use previously developed land and 
contribute to meeting an identified affordable housing need within the area of 
the local planning authority. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



 
 

33. It is pertinent to highlight the definition of ‘previously developed land’ as set out 
in the NPPF glossary: 
 
“Previously developed land: Land which is or was occupied by a permanent 
structure, including the curtilage of the developed land (although it should not 
be assumed that the whole of the curtilage should be developed) and any 
associated fixed surface infrastructure. This excludes: land that is or was last 
occupied by agricultural or forestry buildings; land that has been developed for 
minerals extraction or waste disposal by landfill, where provision for restoration 
has been made through development management procedures; land in built-
up areas such as residential gardens, parks, recreation grounds and 
allotments; and land that was previously developed but where the remains of 
the permanent structure or fixed surface structure have blended into the 
landscape”. 
 

34.  Local Plan Policy DP13 reiterates these exceptions under criterion F and 
seeks to ensure that any proposal for a replacement building ‘is sited on or 
close to the position of the building it is replacing, except where an alternative 
siting within the curtilage demonstrably improves the openness of the Green 
Belt.’.  
 

35. The redevelopment of a PDL site would fall under criterion (G) of Policy DP13 
and be supported provided the proposal does not have a greater impact on the 
openness of the green Belt and the purposes of including land within it than the 
existing development.  

 
36. The application site is situated within the Metropolitan Green Belt on the south 

side of The Ridge, Woldingham in an area characterised by sporadic residential 
development.  Plots generally comprise dwellings, of a range of sizes, set in 
spacious grounds.  

 
37. In terms of the first Green Belt exception for new development not being 

regarded as inappropriate, the replacement of a building, this is provided the 
new building is in the same use and not materially larger than the one it 
replaces. The NPPF establishes two tests, firstly relating to the use, and then 
an objective assessment of the relative size of the existing and replacement 
building.  In this regard, the proposal would have a greater density than the 
existing, it would fall within the same residential use class and therefore pass 
the first test. The second test is a matter of judgement based on the evidence 
of each case as the NPPF does not define what constitute ‘materially larger’. 
 

38. The proposal relates to the demolition of the existing building and the erection 
of a replacement building to create 12 flats.  It is recognised that the density 
would be greater than the existing, however, the site is considered capable of 
accommodating 12 units without constituting overdevelopment. 

 
39. The proposed development seeks to erect a two-storey building with 

accommodation within the roof space. The proposed building would have 
external dimensions of approximately 29m wide and 18.39m deep with a 
maximum ridge height of 10.22m.  The proposed apartment building would be 
lower than the existing building on site by 2.42m. In addition, quantitatively the 
proposals would result in an increase in volume of approximately 32%.   
 
 
 

Page 43



 
 

40. Whilst the proposal would be marginally larger in terms of its footprint, and 
larger by a factor of approximately 32% when considering its volume and 
massing overall, the proposal would not be materially visually larger than the 
existing dwelling to be replaced. This is based on matter of judgement and what 
is usually permitted by the Council.  As in this case, the Council usually permits 
the extension to an existing dwelling not exceeding 40% in volume of the 
original house. In its context, the building and associated works would remain 
substantial but wholly proportionate to this very generous site.  
 

41. In terms of the proposal when assessed as redevelopment of PDL, the proposal 
is not considered to have a greater impact on openness than the existing 
development. Furthermore, the proposed removal of the existing tennis court 
to create car parking would not result in incursion into the open countryside and 
would be well landscaped to enhance the appearance.  Comments received 
from the residents relating to the impact of the development on the openness 
of the Green Belt officer have been noted and carefully considered. 
 

42. Overall, it is concluded that the proposed development would not result in the 
any significant loss of openness to the Green Belt and would not result in any 
significant encroachment of development into the open countryside.  This leads 
to the conclusion that the proposal would not comprise inappropriate 
development and the proposal therefore complies with the objectives of Local 
Plan Policy DP13 and the guidance in the NPPF. 
 

Residential Garden Land  
 

43. Policy DP8 of the Local Plan seeks to manage the redevelopment of residential 
garden land. According to this policy, proposals involving infilling, back land or 
the complete or partial redevelopment of residential garden land will be 
permitted within the settlements of Caterham, Oxted, Warlingham, Whyteleafe 
and Woldingham, only if the development scheme: 
 

1. Is appropriate to the surrounding area in terms of land use, size and 
scale;  

2. Maintains, or where possible, enhances the character and appearance 
of the area, reflecting the variety of local dwelling types;  

3. Does not involve the inappropriate sub-division of existing curtilages to 
a size below that prevailing in the area*, taking account of the need to 
retain and enhance mature landscapes;  

4. Presents a frontage in keeping with the existing street scene or the 
prevailing layout of streets in the area, including frontage width, building 
orientation, visual separation between buildings and distance from the 
road; and  

5. Does not result in the loss of biodiversity or an essential green corridor 
or network.  

 
44. Local and national Policies encourage the effective use of land by developing 

previously used land in urban areas which is also consistent with sustainable 
principles, the golden thread that runs through both national and local policies.   
NPPF Paragraph 122 urges support for development that makes efficient use 
of land taking into account the desirability of maintaining an area’s prevailing 
character and setting (including residential gardens), or of promoting 
regeneration and change.  
 
 

Page 44



 
 

45. This site is located outside of the identified settlements and therefore the policy 
is of limited relevance to the proposed development.  The site does comprise 
residential garden land and therefore an assessment has been made against 
the policy criteria. 
 

46. The proposed development is considered to be appropriate in terms of the land 
use, scale and size as discussed in the green belt and character assessment 
parts of this report.    Given the size of the site a, and the availability of space 
around the proposed building for landscaping, it is considered that the 
character and appearance of the area would be maintained.  The site is one of 
the largest in the area and the provision of a single building sub-divided into 
flats would not result in an inappropriate sub-division of the curtilage.  The 
overall plot size would remain as existing .  The street frontage to The Ridge 
would be maintained and there would be no loss of bio-diversity as a result of 
the proposals.   
 

47. In light of these comments, it is not considered that the proposals would conflict 
with Policy DP8 of the Local Plan: Part 2 Detailed Policies.   

 
 
Impact upon the character and appearance of the area 
 

48. Paragraph 126 of the NPPF 2021 states that sustainable development is a key 
aspect of the development process, seeking to create high quality buildings and 
places and creating better places in which to live and work and helps make 
development acceptable to communities. Even though Core Strategy Policy 
CSP18 predates the national policy, it is based on the same principles of 
sustainable development requiring that new development, within town centres, 
built up areas, the villages and the countryside be of a high standard of design 
that reflects and respects the character, setting and local context, including 
those features that contribute to local distinctiveness. Development must also 
have regard to the topography of the site, important trees or groups of trees 
and other important features that need to be retained.  
 

49. This is further expanded by Detailed Policy DP7 which expects development to 
be of a high-quality design, integrating effectively with its surroundings, 
reinforcing local distinctiveness and landscape character and does not result in 
overdevelopment or unacceptable intensification by reason of scale, form, bulk, 
height, spacing density and design. Core Strategy Policy CSP20 seeks to 
conserve and enhance the special landscape character, heritage, 
distinctiveness and sense of place of the locality within an Area of Great 
Landscape Value (AGLV) or an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).  
This policy is reinforced by Woldingham Neighbourhood Plan Policy with 
respect to Policy L1 which sets out design criteria for development and Policy 
L3 which sets out specific factors relevant to the landscape designation for 
consideration. 
 

50. The site lies within the AGLV and just outside the AONB which is situated to 
the south of the site.  The National Planning Policy Framework explains that 
great weight should be given to conserving and enhancing landscape and 
scenic beauty in AONBs, which have the highest status of protection nationally.  
 
 
 
 

Page 45



 
 

51. The existing building is situated on a high ground however the rear garden falls 
significantly of the site towards the AONB. The existing building is significantly 
taller by approximately 2.42m at 12.62m to the ridge albeit narrower in width by 
2.5m compared with the replacement building.  The proposed apartment 
building has been designed in recognition of the existing character of the site 
and wider area. The building would be situated on the same footprint as the 
existing building and well back from the highway. The building would not be 
visible or prominent from the public realm from The Ridge with good levels of 
landscaping retained along the frontage boundary however due to the fall in 
ground level would be visible from the rear.   
 

52. Comments received from the AONB officer and the residents have been noted 
and carefully considered. However, it is not considered that the proposal would 
have sufficient visual impact on the AONB to support the objection raised. 
There is a substantial building already on the site, with expanse of 
hardstanding. The proposed building on the site has been designed to reflect 
the character and appearance of the exiting dwelling on the site, albeit using 
modern materials and including features found on the existing dwelling, such 
as timber detailing, decorative tile hanging, modest dormer windows within the 
roof scape and projecting balconies.  The design is considered appropriate for 
this area which although rural is located in a cluster of approximately 50 
dwellings.   
 

53. The site is well landscaped, and the proposal has been designed to reflect and 
respect key elements, including siting and separations to ensure landscape 
character is conserved in the opinion of officers.  Furthermore, it is officers view 
that the design, scale and position of the replacement building would not impact 
adversely on the open character which is intrinsic to the AONB and would not 
result in any incursion harmful to the qualities that give its special interest. 
 

54. In terms of scale, the proposed apartment building will be lower than the 
existing building on the site. Whilst the development would result in a modest 
increase in volume, the mass has been broken up through sensitive roofscape 
features such as hipped roofs, central gables and proportionate dormer 
windows. The proposed building would therefore respect the scale and mass 
of surrounding buildings.  In terms of architectural treatment, a mix of external 
materials are proposed which would reflect the traditional Surrey vernacular 
(dark grey brick to plinth, red clay facing brick above plinth and plain clay roofing 
tiles) to preserve the rural setting of the site. The building when viewed from 
the frontage would effectively appear as one large dwelling due to concealed 
flatted design features in reflection of the typology of properties on The Ridge. 
Furthermore, the proposed external materials would appear appropriate to the 
site and its setting, however details/samples could be provided to the Council 
prior to construction and this could be managed by way of planning condition if 
planning permission is granted 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 46



 
 

55. Although the building would include significant glazed areas, these would not 
be uncommon for contemporary flatted development and there is no prevailing 
building style in the locality.  The existing building has extensive windows 
including dormers. As a result, it is not considered that the proposed 
replacement building with its architectural style, form and features would be 
unduly incongruous or out of keeping with, nor detrimental to, the prevailing 
area. It is further considered that the proposed building would not significantly 
alter that situation and the related impacts on the AGLV and the scenic beauty 
of the AONB to warrant the refusal of planning permission.   Although, the use 
of the existing tennis court for parking would have some impact in terms of 
urbanising the site due to scale and number of parking provision however, the 
site is currently well-screened from any public vantage points with significant 
dense cypress trees.  The existing ground is also constructed with hardcore 
materials similar to the proposal and as such, the effect would be at worst 
moderate but not significant. 
 

56. The proposed refuse storage building would be sited within the car parking area 
of the tennis court which is currently screened by tall cypress trees with external 
dimensions of approximately 4.8m wide x 4.8m deep.  The proposed cycle 
store would be sited close to the northeast boundary at the frontage of the 
building measuring 4.6m wide x 4.5m deep. The proposed external materials 
would be timber boarding with clay roof tiles. The proposed cycle store and 
refuse store structures would have a low-key appearance in comparison with 
the main building on the site.  Details can be conditioned to ensure the materials 
are appropriate in the interest of amenity and in accordance with Policy CSP18 
and DP7.   

 
57. Based on the above assessment, it is not considered that the proposed 

replacement building would be significantly harmful to the character and 
appearance of the area and not contrary to Policy CSP18 of the Core Strategy 
and Policy DP7 of the Local Plan, Policy CSP20 of the Core Strategy and Policy 
L1 and L3 of the Woldingham Neighbourhood Plan which seek, amongst other 
things, that development proposals will be required to meet good standards of 
design, contributing positively to both townscape and landscape. 

 
Impact on residential amenities of existing and future occupiers  

 
58. The impact of the proposed development on residential amenity of 

neighbouring dwellings and the amenities of the future occupants is considered 
in terms of the impact on access to day/sun/sky light and privacy, outlook and 
overbearing. Policy CSP18 of the Core Strategy and DP7 of the Local Plan 
apply and seek to provide good standard of design in all new development.  
The Surrey Design Guide SDG supplements Policy DP7 and expects that 
development should not cause loss of light or be unduly dominant from 
adjoining properties, by either the length of projection, the height or the 
proximity of the development. The Policy reflects the guidance at paragraph 
127(f) of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019, which seeks amongst 
other things to create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which 
promote health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and 
future users of development.  
 

59. The dwelling potentially most impacted by the proposal would be the 
neighbouring occupiers at Woodrising Cottage which is situated to the 
northeast of the application site.  
 

Page 47



 
 

60. The proposed apartment building would be sited at approximately 19.5m to this 
property.  It is noted that the height of the proposed building would be lower 
and on the same footprint as the existing structure on site. Notwithstanding the 
above, the number of windows facing this property would increase from six to 
ten including two balconies on the first floor and three to six windows on the 
second floor however this would have oblique views towards this dwelling due 
to the orientation. As indicated above, the nearest window would be 19.5 m and 
the furthest about 30.5m with oblique or angled views towards this property. 
For this reason, there will be no significant overlooking or loss of privacy to the 
occupiers at Woodrising Cottage.  Furthermore, whilst there will be a larger 
number of households on the site the proposed car park is set well away from 
Woodrising Cottage and heavily screened by dense trees so there will be no 
impact in terms of noise or disturbance from associated vehicular movements.   

 
61. Representations received from the residents have been noted and carefully 

considered however it is considered that the location of these windows, 
orientation and the distance between these properties would not lead to any 
significant loss of privacy and overlooking on the current level of amenity 
enjoyed the occupiers of this dwelling house to warrant the refusal of planning 
permission.  
 

62. With regard to the impact on residential amenities of the future occupiers of the 
proposed development, the government guidance in the NPPF 2021 
(paragraph 130(f)) seeks high standard of amenity for existing and future users 
of development. The proposed development has been designed around the 
constraints of the site. The fenestration arrangements would be sufficient to 
provide natural light for all rooms associated with the proposed flats and 
provide adequate outlook for the future occupants.  Furthermore, the proposed 
internal gross floorspace area for 2-bed, four persons dwelling of between 
77.5sqm, 1-bed, 2 persons dwelling of 65.8sqm and 3-bed, 6 persons dwelling 
of 139.6sqm are considered acceptable and would exceed the required space 
standards contained within the Nationally Described Space Standards with 
regards to internal floor space. The proposed communal amenity/garden area 
at the rear of the building for the future occupants are also considered 
acceptable.  
 

63. Overall, it is considered that the proposal would provide appropriate amenity 
space within the building curtilage for the future residents of the development. 
For these reasons, the proposal would not be significantly harmful to the 
amenities of neighbouring properties or future residents and there would be no 
conflict with Policies CSP18 and DP7 in this regard.  
 

Parking, access, cycle and refuse storage  
 

64. The proposal would provide 28 parking spaces including two disabled spaces 
accessible via The Ridge leading onto hardstanding area at the former tennis 
court area which would provide for 22 spaces with further six spaces at the 
frontage of the building.  The proposed parking complies with the Council’s 
adopted parking standards SPD which require 1.5 spaces each for one and 
two-bedroom flats and 2 spaces for three bed flats.  It is considered that the 
number of spaces and location would be appropriate and sufficient for the 
development and in line with census data for ownership in the area. 
 

 

Page 48



 
 

65. In terms of vehicular access, the applicant has submitted visibility plans 
indicated that there is good visibility to the east and west along The Ridge.  The 
County Highway Officer has carefully assessed the additional information and 
has raised no objection. It is proposed to construct a cycle store at the 
northwest frontage of the site and a refuse store within the former tennis court 
area.    
 

66. The scheme has been designed to allow refuse vehicles to enter and exit the 
site in forward gear to ensure refuse collection is acceptable in terms of 
highways safety and convenience. Again, the County Highway Officer has 
carefully assessed the additional information and has raised no objection. It is 
considered that the development would provide appropriate levels of cycle 
storage to encourage active travel to and from the site.  With no objection 
received from the CHA on highway safety, policy or capacity grounds, it is 
considered that the proposals would not have significant adverse impact on 
highway safety to warrant the refusal of planning permission.  
 

67. Subject to relevant conditions being secured relating to access arrangements, 
suitable parking provision and EVCPs being provided, there are no objections 
raised with regards to Policies CSP12 and CSP18 of the Core Strategy and 
Policies DP5 and DP7 of the Local Plan with regarding to highways safety, 
parking, cycle or refuse storage. 

 
Trees and Landscaping  
  
68. Policy CSP18 of the Core Strategy, DP7 and DP8 of the Local Plan require all 

developments to include landscaping proposals and to respect and retain 
existing landscape features such as trees, hedges and shrubs. Also, to provide 
for suitable new planting, trees, and boundary treatments to enhance the 
appearance, character and amenity of the site from the outset.    
 

69. Currently, the site contains several trees and vegetation. Notwithstanding the 
above, the site is outside any conservation area and not subject to a Tree 
Preservation Order; therefore, trees on site are not afforded any statutory 
protection. The submitted site arboricultural statement prepared by Quaife 
Woodlands shows the retention of the existing vehicular access via The Ridge.  
It is proposed to improve the existing drive entrance and the layout of the site 
to provide vehicular access to the tennis court which is to be converted into 22 
parking spaces.  The statement indicates that significant trees would be 
retained, although there are seven trees to be removed due to their poor 
condition irrespective of the proposal.  One group of trees would be removed 
adjacent to the eastern elevation of the house to create a gap in a line of 
cypress trees to provide access to the tennis court parking. 
 

70. The arboricultural statement sets out recommendations and provides an 
indicative tree protection plan during construction and retention afterwards.  
Significant post development pressure on the retained trees is not envisaged 
due to location of the building and proximity to existing trees. Overall there is 
no objection in relation to the tree works and planting on the site subject to the 
approval of landscaping and planting details and this could be managed by way 
of planning condition if planning permission is granted.  
 
 
 
 

Page 49



 
 

71. The Council’s Senior Tree officer has reviewed the proposal and commented 
as follows: 

 
“The nearest ancient woodland is over 400m away and as such the proposal 
does not affect the ancient woodland either directly or indirectly. 

 
Mature trees growing on site that are important to the character of the area are 
potentially affected and this is highlighted within the submitted arboricultural 
report. A heads of terms for the protection of the retained trees has been 
provided, but in my view a detailed arboricultural method statement is 
necessary to confirm the exact methodology for how the protection of the trees 
will, e achieved, particularly in respect of the driveway extensions within RPAs 
and temporary ground protection during both demolition and construction. With 
this in mind I raise no objections, but I do recommend the following conditions: 

 
Trees - Detailed Arboricultural method statement 
 
Notwithstanding the tree protection information already submitted, no 
development shall start until a detailed arboricultural method statement and 
tree protection plan for both demolition and construction phases, in accordance 
with BS5837:2012 Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction - 
Recommendations [appropriate and specific to the approved scheme], to 
include details of all works and methods of construction within the root 
protection area, or crown spread [whichever is greater], of any retained tree, 
has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Thereafter, all works shall be carried out and constructed in accordance with 
the approved details and shall not be varied without the written consent of the 
Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: To prevent damage to trees in the interest of the visual amenities of 
the area in accordance with Policy CSP18 of the Tandridge District Core 
Strategy 2008 and Policy DP7 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 Detailed 
Policies 2014”.  
 
 

72. For these reasons the proposal would respect and reflect the character and 
appearance of the site, its setting and local context and there would be no 
conflict with Policies CSP18, DP7 and DP8 in this regard.  

 
Biodiversity and nature conservation  
  

73. The presence of protected species is a material consideration, in accordance 
with the National Planning Policy Framework, Natural Environment & Rural 
Communities (NERC) Act 2006 (section 40), Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 
as well as Circular 06/05. In the UK the requirements of the EU Habitats 
Directive are implemented by the Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations 2010 (the Conservation Regulations 2010). Where a European 
Protected Species (‘EPS’) might be affected by a development, it is necessary 
to have regard to Regulation 9(5) of the Conservation Regulations 2010, which 
states: “a competent authority, in exercising any of their functions, must have 
regard to the requirements of the Habitats Directive so far as they may be 
affected by the exercise of those functions.” The Conservation Regulations 
2010, (Regulation 41) contains the main offences for EPS animals. 

 

Page 50



 
 

74. The site itself is not identified as one of nature conversation or biodiversity 
importance however the site and the existing building on the site may provide 
such habitat, especially given the age and the condition of the building and the 
proximity to surrounding trees, some of which form part of the nearby area of 
(ancient) woodland. The application was accompanied by Preliminary 
Ecological Appraisal & Bat Activity Survey prepared by Elite Ecology which 
evaluates the ecological importance of the site.  The report outlines a number 
of protected and notable species that could be present at the site. Following 
this assessment, mitigation measures are proposed, which will make the 
development site suitable for the natural environment and will therefore not 
carry any ecological risks.  The report also, proposes several enhancement 
measures such as the inclusion of bird and bat boxes as well as incorporating 
native and nectar rich plants in the landscaping of the site.  
 

75. Surrey Wildlife Trust have been consulted on the proposals and make a 
number of recommendations as follows: 
 

 Prior to determination, the applicant should submit the additional bat 
emergence/re-entry surveys. 

 Advise that any external lighting installed on the site complies with 
relevant guidance. 

 Seek clarification from the ecologist on the need for further badger 
walkover surveys and the potential on the site for dormice (if present). 

 Provide an appropriately details document to demonstrate that a 
measurable net gain will be achieved.   

 
76. The applicants have been requested to provide this information and their 

response and that of Surrey Wildlife Trust will be reported verbally at the 
meeting.  
  

77. It is considered that subject to the recommendation by the Surrey Wildlife Trust 
that the development should be carried out in accordance with section 5.4 of 
the submitted ecology report the proposal would not conflict with Core Strategy 
Policy CSP17 and Detailed Policy DP19.  

 
Flood risk and Drainage  
  

78. The site does not lie within an Environment Agency Flood Zone 2 and 3 (the 
most severe levels of flood risk) although there are recorded 1 in 100 year and 
1 in 1000-year flood events. Although the proposal is not for major development 
as much of the site is currently undeveloped and as the existing building would 
be demolished and removed it would offer opportunity for the applicant to 
incorporate a sustainable drainage system (SuDS).  
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



 
 

79. The applicant has submitted Surface Water and Foul Water Management 
Strategy prepared by Herrington Consulting in support of the proposed 
development. In summary, the report states that the proposed development will 
discharge surface water by way of soakaway as the most suitable solution for 
draining the site. The report goes further and states that ground investigations 
be undertaken at the detailed design stage in respect of SUD as a solution for 
managing surface water runoff in accordance with local plan policy DP21. 
Representations received from the residents have been noted and carefully 
considered however it is considered that the proposal includes appropriate 
flood resilient and resistant design, and mitigation and adaptation measures 
which would help to reduce the risk of flooding in the locality and as such 
considered acceptable. 
 

80. It is considered that the proposal is acceptable and complies with Detailed 
Policy DP21 and can be conditioned if planning permission is granted. 

 
Renewable energy  
 

81. Policy CSP14 (Sustainable Construction) of the Core Strategy requires all new 
residential development on sites of 10 or more dwellings to achieve a minimum 
20% reduction in carbon emissions (below the normal requirements set by the 
Building Regulations) through the incorporation of on-site renewable energy.  
 

82. The assessment report submitted with the application indicates that the 
renewable energy technologies incorporated into the scheme will reduce the 
emissions in accordance the Local Plan requirement. This will be achieved 
through the provision of photovoltaic panels and energy efficient design 
measures in accordance with Policy CSP14.  It is noted that the applicant has 
assumed that the policy requirement of 10% instead of 20%. Nonetheless, it 
would be reasonable and necessary to require the technology to be installed 
and retained for its specified use and this could be managed by way of planning 
condition if planning permission is granted. 

 
Other matters 
 

83. Objections have been received from Woldingham Parish Council and from the 
neighbouring residents relating to impact of the development on the character 
and appearance of the site and the wider locality.  These matters have been 
addressed in the report.  Other concerns raised by residents relate to impact 
on the character and appearance of the site, Surrey Hills AONB and AGLV, 
overlooking and loss of privacy and highway safety have also been addressed 
in the report.  With regard to noise, disturbance, the comings and goings of the 
future occupants of the development, the Council’s Environmental Health 
Officer has raised no objection and the scale of the development, in this 
context, is not considered excessive to result in significant harm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 52



 
 
Planning Balance  
  

84. Section 38(6) PCPA 2004 states that “if regard is to be had to the development 
plan for any determination to be made under the planning Acts the 
determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise”. As identified earlier in this report the 
proposed development is acceptable in principle in accordance with the 
development plan, being replacement building in the Green Belt, in a defined 
Category 2 settlement area in Woldingham. The development plan is up to date 
and carries substantial weight. The NPPF advises that in such circumstances, 
a development which is not in conflict with it should be granted. This 
demonstrates the primacy of the development plan in the plan led system and 
the need for significant weight to be accorded to up to date development plans.  

  
85. Officers recognise that the proposed development would provide material 

benefits, notably the provision of additional market housing; which this is 
afforded significant weight as Tandridge District Council currently cannot 
demonstrate a five-year housing land supply and the 9 additional dwellings 
albeit a small amount would overall increase the housing requirement for 
Tandridge. The development will also bring associated support to the local 
economy, but again this afforded limited weight given the number of dwellings.  

  
86. In addition, the development is CIL liable and will attract New Homes Bonus 

payments and as set out in Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
(as amended by Section 143 of the Localism Act) these are local financial 
considerations which must be considered, as far as they are material to the 
application in reaching a decision. It has been concluded that the proposal 
accords with the Development Plan and whilst the implementation and 
completion of the development will result in a local financial benefit this is not a 
matter that needs to be given significant weight in the determination of this 
application.   

  
87. Carefully weighing up all the material considerations it is concluded that the 

there is no clear conflict with the development plan policies and the benefits 
clearly outweigh the harmful impact of the development.  

  
Conclusions  
 

88. It is considered that the resulting building would not be considered 
inappropriate development in the Green Belt. The proposal would respect the 
character and appearance of the prevailing area, its setting as well as the 
setting of the AGLV and the Surrey Hills AONB to the south of the site. It would 
also respect the local context and there would be no significant harm to 
neighbouring amenities. Furthermore, there would be no significant impact 
upon the wider highway network and the renewable energy provision would be 
acceptable. It is therefore recommended that the application is granted 
planning permission subject to the conditions and informative(s) set out below. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



 
 

89. The recommendation is made in light of the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) and the Government’s Planning Practice Guidance 
(PPG).  It is considered that in respect of the assessment of this application 
significant weight has been given to policies within the Council’s Core Strategy 
2008 and the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014 in 
accordance with paragraph 213 of the NPPF. Due regard as a material 
consideration has been given to the NPPF and PPG in reaching this 
recommendation. 

 
90. All other material considerations, including third party comments, have been 

considered but none are considered sufficient to change the recommendation. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  PERMIT subject to the following conditions  
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun not later than the expiration 
of 3 years from the date of this permission. 

 
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 

 
2. This decision refers to the drawings numbered 2F10 – Site Location and Block 

Plan, 2F11 – Proposed Ground Floor Plan, 2F12 – Proposed First Floor Plan, 
2F13 – Proposed Second Floor Plan, 2F14 – Proposed Roof Plan, 2F15 – 
Proposed Elevations, 2F16 Proposed Site Section Plan, 2F17 – Proposed 
Plans and Elevation of Bike and Bin Stores, 2F18 – Hybrid Block Site Plan of 
Existing and Proposed, M1332-1 – Existing Site Survey Plan, Topography and 
Roof Plan, M1332-2 – Existing Ground Floor Plan, M1332-3 – Existing First 
Floor Plan, M1332-4 – Existing Second Floor Plan, M1332-5 – Existing 
Basement Floor Plan, M1332-6 – Existing Elevations Main House and M1332-
7 – Existing Site Section Plan scanned on 21 January 2021, 2F19 Rev A - Site 
Plan with Visibility Splays and 2F20 – Site Plan with Vehicle Tracking Scanned 
on 12 August 2021.  The development shall be carried out in accordance with 
these approved drawings. There shall be no variations from these approved 
drawings. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the scheme proceeds as set out in the planning 
application and therefore remains in accordance with the Development Plan. 

 
3. Prior to any works taking place above ground level, particulars and/or 

samples of materials to be used on the external faces of the development 
hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the District 
Planning Authority and the development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the new works harmonise with the surrounding 
properties to accord with Policy DP7 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – 
Detailed Polices 2014 and Policy CSP18 of the Tandridge District Core 
Strategy 2008. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 54



 
 

4. Prior to any works taking place above ground level, full details of both hard 
and soft landscape works shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved. 
These details shall include:  

 proposed finished levels or contours 
 means of enclosure 
 car parking layouts 
 other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas 
 boundary treatments  
 hard surfacing materials 
 details of any SuDS measures 
 location and appearance of refuse stores 
 location and appearance of cycle stores 
 External lighting columns 
 minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, other storage 

units, signs, other lighting etc.).  

a) Details of soft landscape works shall include all proposed and retained trees, 
hedges and shrubs; ground preparation, planting specifications and ongoing 
maintenance, together with details of areas to be grass seeded or turfed.  
Planting schedules shall include details of species, plant sizes and proposed 
numbers/densities. All new planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the 
approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and 
seeding season following the completion or occupation of any part of the 
development (whichever is the sooner) or otherwise in accordance with a 
programme to be agreed.   

b) Any trees or plants (including those retained as part of the development) 
which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are 
removed, or, in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, become seriously 
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others 
of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written 
consent to any variation. The hard landscape works shall be carried out prior to 
the occupation of the development.  

Reason: To maintain and enhance the visual amenities of the development in 
accordance with Policy CSP18 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 and 
Policy DP7 and DP9 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 
2014. 

5. No development shall commence above ground level until further details of 
the proposed renewable energy technology to be incorporated into the scheme 
showing the location and how the development would satisfy the 20% reduction 
of carbon emissions through renewable resources, have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The renewable energy 
provision shall thereafter be implemented and retained in accordance with the 
approved details. 

 
Reason: To ensure on-site renewable energy provision to enable the 
development to actively contribute to the reduction of carbon dioxide emissions 
in accordance with Policy CSP14 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008. 

 
 
 

Page 55



 
 

6. No development shall start until the tree protection measures detailed within 
the Appendix B Aboricultural Survey Plan (AR/4066/jq) and Arboricultural 
Method Statement have been implemented. Thereafter these measures shall 
be retained and any specified arboricultural supervision or staging of works 
strictly adhered to throughout the course of development and shall not be 
varied without the written agreement of the Local Planning Authority.  

  
In any event, the following restrictions shall be strictly observed unless 
otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority:  

  
(a) No bonfires shall take place within the root protection area (RPA) or within 

a position where heat could affect foliage or branches.  
(b) No further trenches, drains or service runs shall be sited within the RPA of 

any retained trees.   
(c) No further changes in ground levels or excavations shall take place within 
the RPA of any retained trees.  

  
Reason: To prevent damage to trees in the interest of the visual amenities of 
the area in accordance with Policy CSP18 of the Tandridge District Core 
Strategy 2008 and Policy DP7 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed 
Policies 2014.  

 
7. No further trees or hedges shall be pruned, felled or uprooted during site 

preparation, construction and landscaping works [except as shown on the 
documents and plans hereby approved] without the prior written consent of the 
Local Planning Authority. Any retained trees or hedges which within a period of 
5 years from the completion of the development die are removed, or, in the 
opinion of the Local Planning Authority, are dying, becoming diseased or 
damaged shall be replaced by plants of such size and species as may be 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  

  
Reason: To prevent damage to trees in the interest of the visual amenities of 
the area in accordance with Policy CSP18 of the Tandridge District Core 
Strategy 2008 and Policy DP7 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed 
Policies 2014.  
 

8. Notwithstanding the tree protection information already submitted, no 
development shall start until a detailed arboricultural method statement and 
tree protection plan for both demolition and construction phases, in accordance 
with BS5837:2012 Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction - 
Recommendations [appropriate and specific to the approved scheme], to 
include details of all works and methods of construction within the root 
protection area, or crown spread [whichever is greater], of any retained tree, 
has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Thereafter, all works shall be carried out and constructed in accordance with 
the approved details and shall not be varied without the written consent of the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To prevent damage to trees in the interest of the visual amenities of 
the area in accordance with Policy CSP18 of the Tandridge District Core 
Strategy 2008 and Policy DP7 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 Detailed 
Policies 2014. 
  
 

Page 56



 
 

9. The development shall be carried out wholly in accordance with the 
‘Recommendations’ set out within Section 5 of the ‘Preliminary Ecology 
Appraisal & Bat Activity’ dated October 2020.  

 
Reason: To ensure that protected species are adequately protected, and 
biodiversity impact is suitably mitigated against in accordance with Policy 
CSP17 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 and Policy DP19 of the 
Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014. 

 
10. No part of the development shall be first occupied unless and until the 

proposed modified vehicular / pedestrian access to The Ridge has been 
constructed and provided with visibility zones in accordance with drawing no. 
2F19 Rev A and thereafter the visibility zones shall be kept permanently clear 
of any obstruction over 1 m high. 

Reason: To ensure that the development provides adequate vehicular and 
pedestrian access in the interest of highway safety nor cause inconvenience to 
other highway users to accord with the objectives of the NPPF (2021), and to 
satisfy Policy CSP12 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 and Policy 
DP5 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014. 

 
11. The development shall not be occupied until space has been laid out within the 

site in accordance with the approved plans for cars to be parked and for 
vehicles to turn so that they may enter and leave the site in forward gear. The 
parking/turning area shall be used and retained exclusively for its designated 
purpose. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the development provides adequate vehicular and 
pedestrian access in the interest of highway safety nor cause inconvenience to 
other highway users to accord with the objectives of the NPPF (2021), and to 
satisfy Policy CSP12 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 and Policy 
DP5 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014. 

 
12. The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until at least 10 of the 

available parking spaces are provided with a fast charge socket (current 
minimum requirements - 7 kw Mode 3 with Type 2 connector - 230v AC 32 Amp 
single phase dedicated supply) in accordance with a scheme to be submitted 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter retained 
and maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the development provides adequate vehicular and 
pedestrian access in the interest of highway safety nor cause inconvenience to 
other highway users to accord with the objectives of the NPPF (2019), and to 
satisfy Policy CSP12 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 and Policy 
DP5 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014. 

 
13. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and 

until the secure parking of 30 bicycles within the development site have been 
provided in accordance with the approved plans and thereafter shall be 
retained and maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: To ensure the development provides adequate cycle provision in 
recognition of Section 9 'Promoting Sustainable Transport' in the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2021 and to accord with Policies CSP12 of the 
Tandridge District Core Strategy (2008) and DP7 of the Tandridge Local Plan 
Part 2: Detailed Policies (2014). 

Page 57



 
 

14. No development shall not commence until a Construction Transport 
Management Plan, to include details of   
(a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors  
(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials  
(c) storage of plant and materials  
(d) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway has been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Only 
the approved details shall be implemented during the construction of the 
development.  
 

Reason: In the interests of safety, protecting the amenity of local land uses, 
neighbouring residents and highway safety and in accordance with Policy 
CSP12 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 and Policy DP5 of the 
Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014.The Local Planning 
Authority is satisfied that the timing of compliance is fundamental to the 
development permitted and that the permission ought to be refused unless the 
condition is imposed in this form.  
 

15. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until 
the secure parking of bicycles (and access thereto) within the development site 
has been provided in accordance with the approved plans and then retained 
and maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. The 
provision shall thereafter be kept available for parking at all times.   

  
Reason: To ensure adequate dedicated provision for cycle parking space 
within the site to allow vehicles to draw off and park clear of the highway to 
minimise danger, obstruction and inconvenience to users of the adjoining 
highway in accordance with Policy CSP12 of the Tandridge District Core 
Strategy 2008 and Policy DP5 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed 
Policies 2014.  
 

16. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until details of the 
design of a surface water drainage scheme have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the planning authority. The design must satisfy the SuDS 
Hierarchy and be compliant with the national Non-Statutory Technical 
Standards for SuDS, NPPF and Ministerial Statement on SuDS. The required 
drainage details shall include:  
 
(a) The results of infiltration testing completed in accordance with BRE Digest: 

365 and confirmation of groundwater levels.  
(b) Evidence that the proposed final solution will effectively manage the 1 in 

100 (+40% allowance for climate change) storm events, during all stages 
of the development. If infiltration is deemed unfeasible, associated 
discharge rates and storage volumes shall be provided using maximum 
discharge rates. in accordance with Table 5 of the (Sustainable Drainage 
Statement prepared by Herrington Consulting Ltd, January 2021).  

(c) Detailed drainage design drawings and calculations to include: a finalised 
drainage layout detailing the location of drainage elements, pipe diameters, 
levels, and long and cross sections of each element including details of any 
flow restrictions and maintenance/risk reducing features (silt traps, 
inspection chambers etc.). If infiltration is proposed confirmation is required 
of a 1m unsaturated zone from the base of any proposed soakaway to the 
seasonal high groundwater level and confirmation of half-drain times.  

(d) A plan showing exceedance flows (i.e. during rainfall greater than design 
events or during blockage) and how property on and off site will be 
protected from increased flood risk.  

Page 58



 
 

(e) Details of drainage management responsibilities and maintenance regimes 
for the drainage system.  

(f) Details of how the drainage system will be protected during construction 
and how runoff (including any pollutants) from the development site will be 
managed before the drainage system is operational.  
 

Reason: To ensure the design meets the national Non-Statutory Technical 
Standards for SuDS and the final drainage design does not increase flood risk 
on or off site in accordance with Policy DP21 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 
2 – Detailed Policies 2014.  

 
17. Prior to the first occupation of the development, a verification report carried out 

by a qualified drainage engineer must be submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority. This must demonstrate that the surface water 
drainage system has been constructed as per the agreed scheme (or detail any 
minor variations), provide the details of any management company and state 
the national grid reference of any key drainage elements (surface water 
attenuation devices/areas, flow restriction devices and outfalls), and confirm 
any defects have been rectified.  

  
Reason: To ensure the Drainage System is designed to the National Non-
Statutory Technical Standards for SuDS and in accordance with Policy DP21 
of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014.   
 

Informatives: 
 

1. Condition 2 refers to the drawings hereby approved. Non-material amendments 
can be made under the provisions of Section 96A of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 and you should contact the case officer to discuss whether 
a proposed amendment is likely to be non-material. Minor material 
amendments will require an application to vary condition 2 of this permission. 
Such an application would be made under the provisions of Section 73 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990. Major material amendments will require 
a new planning application. You should discuss whether your material 
amendment is minor or major with the case officer. Fees may be payable for 
non-material and material amendment requests. Details of the current fee can 
be found on the Council’s web site. 
 

2. The development permitted is subject to a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
liability for which a Liability Notice will be issued. It is important that you ensure 
that the requirements of the CIL Regulations are met to ensure that you avoid 
any unnecessary surcharges and that any relevant relief or exemption is 
applied. 
 

3. It is the responsibility of the developer to ensure that the electricity supply is 
sufficient to meet future demands and that any power balancing technology is 
in place if required. Please refer to: 
http://www.beama.org.uk/resourceLibrary/beama-guide-to-electric-vehicle-
infrastructure.html for guidance and further information on charging modes 
and connector types. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59

http://www.beama.org.uk/resourceLibrary/beama-guide-to-electric-vehicle-infrastructure.html
http://www.beama.org.uk/resourceLibrary/beama-guide-to-electric-vehicle-infrastructure.html


 
 

4. The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to carry 
out any works (including Stats connections/diversions required by the 
development itself or the associated highway works) on the highway or any 
works that may affect a drainage channel/culvert or water course.  The 
applicant is advised that a permit and, potentially, a Section 278 agreement 
must be obtained from the Highway Authority before any works are carried 
out on any footway, footpath, carriageway, verge or other land forming part of 
the highway. All works (including Stats connections/diversions required by 
the development itself or the associated highway works) on the highway will 
require a permit and an application will need to be submitted to the County 
Council's Street Works Team up to 3 months in advance of the intended start 
date, depending on the scale of the works proposed and the classification of 
the road. Please see http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-
transport/permits-and-licences/traffic-management-permit-scheme. The 
applicant is also advised that Consent may be required under Section 23 of 
the Land Drainage Act 1991. Please see www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-
community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/floodingadvice. 
 

5. The developer is advised that as part of the detailed design of the highway 
works required by the above condition(s), the County Highway Authority may 
require necessary accommodation works to street lights, road signs, road 
markings, highway drainage, surface covers, street trees, highway verges, 
highway surfaces, surface edge restraints and any other street 
furniture/equipment. 

6. Section 59 of the Highways Act permits the Highway Authority to charge 
developers for damage caused by excessive weight and movements of 
vehicles to and from a site. The Highway Authority will pass on the cost of any 
excess repairs compared to normal maintenance costs to the 
applicant/organisation responsible for the damage. 
 

7. The developer is reminded that it is an offence to allow materials to be carried 
from the site and deposited on or damage the highway from uncleaned wheels 
or badly loaded vehicles. The Highway Authority will seek, wherever possible, 
to recover any expenses incurred in clearing, cleaning or repairing highway 
surfaces and prosecutes persistent offenders. (Highways Act 1980 Sections 
131, 148, 149). 

 
The development has been assessed against Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 
Policies CSP1, CSP2, CSP3, CSP4, CSP7, CSP11, CSP12, CSP14, CSP15, CSP17, 
CSP18, CSP19, CSP20, Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2: Detailed Policies 2014 – 
Policies DP1, DP5, DP7, DP9, DP10, DP13, DP19, DP21 and DP22 and material 
considerations, including third party representations. It has been concluded that the 
development, subject to the conditions imposed, would accord with the development 
plan and there are no other material considerations to justify a refusal of permission. 

Page 60

http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/floodingadvice
http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/floodingadvice


© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100018265

Woodrising, The Ridge, Woldingham 
1:1,250

TA/2021/82
Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on the 29th July 2021
	5 Applications for consideration by committee
	5.1 2020/1138 - Woodland Court,1 Harestone Drive, Caterham CR3 6HX
	5.1.1 - site plan for Woodland Court

	5.2 2021/82 - Woodrising, The Ridge, Woldingham CR3 7AG
	5.2.1 - site plan for Woodrising


